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Vision
To be a leader in automotive parts manufacturing in ASEAN regionbyprviding 
end-to-end services, and to growing together with customers 

Mission
 > Focus on creating values to the organization, shareholders  
and stakeholders 

 > Enhance customer’s satisfaction through continuous improvement of 
Quality (Q) Cost (C) Delivery (D) Engineer (E) Management (M) along 
the supply chain

 > Co-operate in design and development of products with customers

 > Continuously improve on production capabilities to be the industry 
cost leader

 > Enhance capabilities of employees together with promoting  
their quality of life 

 > Focus on enhancing and promoting Corporate Governance,  
Risk Management and Corporate Social Responsibility  
through effective Internal Control

•  Vision
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For the Fiscal year 
ended December 31

Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Separate  
Financial Statements

2008 2007
(Restated)

2006 2008 2007
(Restated)

2006

Stock Data

Par value (Baht) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Book value (Baht) 8.54 7.51 6.32 6.09 5.54 5.45

Earning per share (Baht) * 2.12 1.97 1.48 1.10 0.94 0.91 

Operating

Sales revenue 5,814,397 4,979,278 4,252,052 2,007,280 1,803,486 1,562,245

Total income 5,934,810 5,077,541 4,389,253 2,219,994 2,003,416 1,816,411

Net profit 634,677 591,140 442,601 330,838 281,135 272,929

Balance Sheet (Thousand Baht)

Current assets 1,829,774 1,676,919 1,474,292 873,618 849,875 912,883

Total assets 6,360,469 5,252,971 4,661,129 3,902,408 3,726,595 3,782,987

Current liabilities 2,105,530 1,509,963 1,194,269 793,128 679,015 575,964

Total liabilities 3,799,627 3,207,028 2,766,096 2,076,055 2,065,305 2,146,848

Paid-up capital 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000

Shareholders’ equity 2,560,842 2,045,943 1,895,033 1,826,353 1,661,290 1,636,139

Financial Ratio

Returns on shareholders’ equity (%) 26.36% 28.49% 25.09% 18.97% 17.05% 16.70%

Returns on fixed assets (%) 25.90% 28.24% 24.23% 39.19% 41.37% 71.68%

Returns on assets (%) 10.74% 11.68% 9.62% 8.67% 7.49% 7.02%

Gross profit (%) 19.94% 22.03% 18.98% 25.59% 26.25% 21.29%

Current assets ratio to items of current liabilities (times) 0.87 1.11 1.23 1.10 1.25 1.58 

Liquidity ratio to liabilities (times) 0.53 0.75 0.81 0.87 1.00 1.27 

Debt ratio to shareholders’ equity (times) 1.48 1.42 1.46 1.14 1.24 1.31 

Note:

* In year 2008 the use of the weighting average ordinary share numbers of 300 million shares
 In year 2007 the use of the weighting average ordinary share numbers of 300 million shares
 In year 2006 the use of the weighting average ordinary share numbers of 300 million shares

Financial Highlight

Financial Highlight  •
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Market Share of Major Products
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• Coil Spring

• Leaf Spring

• Stabilizer Bar

• Axle Shaft

•  Market Share of Major Products
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• Disc Brake

• Exhaust Manifold

•  Drum Brake

Market Share of Major Products  •
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In 2008, Somboon Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd. had its results of 
operations and growth more than those in the year before, nonetheless with a 
decline in the year’s fourth quarter as a consequence of the economy conditions 
in the United States, which has eventually impacted the world economy in late of 
the year. Furthermore, the Baht currency has declined and the nationally political 
unrest has resulted in this year’ growth of Thai economy averaged at 2.6 percent 
approximately.

According such factors, Thai automotive industry had a 

total production volume at 1,393,742 cars in 2008, or increasing 

8.26 percent from last year. Domestic sale of automobiles was 

at 615,270 cars, or decreasing 2.53 percent from last year. 

Automobiles manufactured for exports were at 732,379 cars, or 

increasing 11.45 percent. During November - December 2008, 

the production volume began to decline 13 percent from the 

same period in 2007, resulting in the Company’s overall total 

sale growing at a rate of 16.77 percent which outperformed 

the automotive industry’s growth rate.

In 2008, the Company had net profit at Baht 634.6 

million, growing from last year by 15 percent. In addition to 

the results of operations, the Board of Directors put emphasis 

on corporate governance and management for effectiveness 

and focused, sustainable creation of organizational values, 

which can be seen from the Company having been evaluated 

through the Project of Listed Companies Governance Survey 

by Thai Institute of Directors Association, the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand, and the Securities and Exchange Commission, to 

be at “excellent” level.

Even so, according to the economy decline in 2009, 

the Board of Directors has closely kept eyes on the situation 

and realize to the importance of building up the organization 

readiness in order to cope with economic instability. Taken 

the risk management practice which conform to international 

standard in order to build up the internal organization immunity 

to ensure the company readiness for the external & internal 

changing to focus on maintaining its liquidity and financial 

strength, meeting customer satisfaction, developing most 

effective work processes along the supply chain to serve 

the Company’s business growth in the future and personnel 

development to face competitions when the conditions enter 

a normal state.

According to the overall results of operations and financial 

strength of the Company, the Board of Directors resolved that 

is was expedient to propose the shareholders’ general ordinary 

meeting on April 22, 2009 to approve a whole-year dividends 

payment at a rate of Baht 0.30 per share, or 14.18 percent of 

net profit, or decreasing from last year by 57.14 percent., with 

interim dividends payment already made at a rate of Baht 0.30 

per share on September 12, 2008.

In the name of the Board of Directors, we hereby thank all 

our stakeholders, employees and management of the Company 

and please be sure that the board is committed and supervise 

the business to grow with long-term stability and emphasize 

participation in social responsibility.

Board of Directors’ Report

•  Board of Directors’ Report
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Business Operations Goals

The Company’s goals are to become a 

leading automotive parts manufacturers in ASEAN, 

providing one-stop service and growing with 

customers, focusing on adding values to the 

organization, shareholders, stakeholders, including 

governance, risk management, good internal control 

and social responsibility. 

In order to create long-term competitiveness, 

the Company puts emphasis on developing its 

manufacturing process to produce products of high 

quality meeting customer demands constantly, 

participating in design and development, and seeking 

new opportunities for expansion both domestically 

and internationally based on its expertise to build 

on top to other value-added products. During 2008, 

the economic crisis, we focus on maintaining our 

financial liquidity and strength. We emphasize the 

development of our highest effective performance.

At the same time, the Company concentrates 

on personnel development promoting creativity 

that results new innovations in the organization 

and knowledge management to make its people 

knowledgeable and competent in individual 

functional lines, especially in engineering, product 

design and development, cross-functional creative 

thinking, and teamwork development programs. 

Future Projects

The Company aims to be one the leading automotive parts manufacturer in ASEAN with focus on 

manufacturing component parts and finished small parts undergoing the processes of  hot forging, casting, 

machining, hardening and spring by expanding its markets both locally and internationally. With customer 

base and product base dispersed among many customers, more diversified products will be introduced 

based on our existing expertise in order for our products, both automotive and non-automotive parts, to 

have added values.

The Company has been preparing its readiness for a new project i.e. manufacturing agricultural 

engine parts for Kubota Tractor Co., Ltd. using casting and machining at a plant in Amata City Industrial 

Park, Rayong, with a view to be ready for mass production in quarter 1 of 2009. This project takes an 

investment of Baht 265 million, resulting in an increase of the production capacity of machining for casting 

from 350,000 pieces per year to 850,000 pieces per year. This project, in addition to creating revenue for 

the Company, is in response to the Company’s strategy regarding adding product values based on our 

existing expertise for expanding into those non-automotive part products. The Company has been under 

its study of other agricultural engine parts with the customer.

However, in order to survive business competition in the future, the Company put emphasis on product 

research and development. It has been studying a number of possibilities of uplifting its design technology, 

product value adding, and meeting customer requirements, such as design of axle shaft, in cooperation 

with experts from Japan to develop simulation software for rotary bending testing contributing to such 

product design and development. The Company has been under the installation of product effectiveness 

testing device for brake disc and brake drum with an investment of Baht 60 million approximately in order 

to test the effectiveness, heat, sound and vibration of them as a way for solving product problems and for 

further product development in the future, which would be ready for use in quarter 1 of 2009. Moreover, the 

Company invests in building a coil spring testing center with an investment of Baht 55 million approximately 

in order to specifically develop this product, which would be a preparation of our strength in product design 

and development for our competitiveness in the future.

Business Operations Goals  •
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The revenue structure of the Company and it’s subsidiaries divided into major products in 2008 and 

2007 can be classified as following:

Products
Operated 

by

% of 
share-
holding

2008
Financial Statement

2007
Financial Statement

Income % Income %

Axle Shaft SAT 1,846 31 1,728 34

Leaf Spring BSK 99.99 643 11 578 11

Disc& Drum Brake SBM 99.99 700 12 650 13

Stabilizer bar BSK 99.99 418 7 365 7

Coil Spring BSK 99.99 388 7 270 5

Exhaust Manifold SBM 99.99 383 6 277 5

Fly wheel and Comp & Fly wheel SBM 99.99 251 4 251 5

Others* 1,185 20 860 17

Total Income from sales 5,814 98 4,979 98

Other income 121 2 114 2

Total income 5,935 100 5,093 100

Note:
* Other products such as trunnion shaft, valve, push rod, brackets and  

other products for the total of more than 20 items

Revenue Structure

•  Revenue Structure
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Being committed to be a governance organization with corporate social responsibility, Somboon 

Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd. has a policy perform corporate social responsibility activities for all 

walks of life who are the “stakeholders” of the company to live safely in good environments and grow in a 

sustainable fashion. The Company’s corporate social responsibility is divided into 2 parts:

1. Working Process Responsibility.

2. Social Development Involvement.

In 2008, Somboon Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries performed corporate 

social responsibility activities as follows:

1. Working Process Responsibility

The Company gave importance to every production process to ensure that resources were used 

worthily, amount of wastes were kept minimum, and an effective waste management system was in place 

to prevent environmental impact. At the same time, all personnel were cared for their continued, good 

health and safety both at work and in their daily life, welfare and personnel development were provided 

for well being and career advancement along with Company growth.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
of Somboon Group

1.1 Environment

Realizing possible environmental impacts arising from 

activities being performed, the Company has a policy to make 

its production process a green technology with a regularly 

inspected effective waste management system to ensure that 

its operation would not incur dangerous pollutions to Company 

personnel and surrounding communities, which has been 

ISO14001 certified.

In 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries ran a campaign 

for even better energy saving and environmental management, 

including optimum use of resources, as follows:

 > Somboon Advance Technology Public Company Limited

Recycle RO Reject water from RO water production 

process in the heat cooling process for workpieces to reduce 

the amount of drained RO Reject water.

Achievement: Amount Drained RO Reject water was 

reduced by 100 percent.

 > Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Company Limited

A program reducing oil aerosol pervasion in the workplace 

was implemented by installing air filters to lessen oil aerosols 

arising from lathing and to reduce staff health impacts.

Achievement: Pervasion could be reduced over 50 

percent.

Corporate Social Responsibility of Somboon Group  •
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A program for lessening used cooling oil in lathing was 

implemented to reuse used cooling oil in the process so as to 

reduce its amount to be disposed of externally.

Achievement: Amount of used cooling oil was reduced 

by 20 percent per month.

A program for lessening the amount of rag use in the 

production process by way of rag cleaning for reuse was 

implemented in order to reduce the amount of rag use, rag 

elimination and purchasing costs.

Achievement: Amount of rag use in the production process 

by way of rag cleaning for reuse achieved 10 times per piece. 

A program for lessening the delivery for disposal of 

used cooling oil in lathing by way of improving the wastewater 

treatment system to reduce the costs of external disposal was 

implemented.

Achievement: The costs could be reduced by 30 percent 

per month.

 > Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited

A Total Energy Management Program (TEM4) was imple-

mented to alleviate the effectiveness of energy use in industry 

and received a Thermal Energy Management Outstanding Plant 

reward from the Department of Industrial Promotion and the 

Thai Environment Institute.

The Participatory Energy Conservation Program received 

a Participatory Energy Conservation Outstanding Plant from 

the Department of Energy Development and Promotion.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries had such 

other projects as foam-free plants to reduce the amount of foam 

garbage and disposal causing Green House effect, and making 

available green areas as a lung of those in the Company and 

surrounding communities, etc.

1.2 Safety

Somboon group companies are committed to continued working safety and good sanitary health of 

its employees by adopting TIS 18001 standard, legal requirements on safety and customer requirements 

as a guide in its establishment of a policy and implementation, communicated from top management 

to employees thoroughly and clearly. Annual plan is made, budget is allocated, and results regularly 

monitored. With a view to become an establishment with zero accident, 3Ts strategy was implemented 

for safety through the past year.

Company 2006 2007 2008

Somboon Advance Technology Plc.

* Lost-Time Injury 2 persons 1 person 0 person

* Non-Lost Time Injury 9 persons 4 persons 1 person

Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Co., Ltd.

* Lost-Time Injury 6 persons 7 persons 0 person

* Non-Lost Time Injury 35 persons 13 persons 11 persons

•  Corporate Social Responsibility of Somboon Group
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Company 2006 2007 2008

Bangkok Spring Industrial Co., Ltd.

* Lost-Time Injury 6 persons 4 persons 4 persons

* Non-Lost Time Injury 37 persons 6 persons 8 persons

International Casting Products Co., Ltd.

* Lost-Time Injury - 11 persons 2 persons

* Non-Lost Time Injury - 22 persons 8 persons

In 2008, Somboon Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd. received a Provincial Safety Outstanding 

Establishment Award from the Office of Labor Protection and Welfare, Samutprakarn, and Somboon 

Malleable Iron Industrial Co., Ltd. received a National Safety Outstanding Establishment Award from the 

Ministry of Labors and Social Welfare.

1.3 Personnel

 > Compensation and Welfare

Realizing that personnel are greatly valuable to the 

business operational success of the organization, the  

Company determines decent compensations fairly based on 

competencies and adopts the Quality of Work Life (QWL) 

development campaign in providing all people working in 

the Company with welfare covering such four good health  

conditions as physical body, emotion, society and spirit, hence 

the activities created for them to touch 8 forms of happiness 

obtained from having good health, being generous, living in a 

good society, feeling relaxed, knowledge buildup, immorality, 

being debt-free, appropriate expenditure management, and 

having a good family.

 > Personnel Development

In order to be prepared 

for business changes, a  

succession plan has been 

established for personnel at 

every level and a competency 

test is held regularly on a 

yearly basis leading to the 

establishment of a personnel development plan in alignment 

with organizational strategies and of individual development 

plans (IDP) in various forms as follows:

 • Development of leadership, management, planning, 

assignment and following-up, including creating a 

working atmosphere in favor of innovative thinking in 

response to the strategic linking plan, contributing to 

Q C D E M Company goals.

 • Personnel development under knowledge management 

for the Company to become a learning organization 

in the future.

 • Learning process development under team-based 

learning by people in the same professions.

Moreover, numerous training and seminars in various 

professions are promoted and personnel at every level are 

encouraged to participate in presenting their comments and 

Corporate Social Responsibility of Somboon Group  •
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suggestions in several operational areas through Suggestion 

Activity. Satisfactions are surveyed in terms of management, 

welfare provision, and comments about the Company using We 

Care questionnaires conducted regularly on a yearly basis. The 

comments obtained will be used in improving the management 

and providing welfare consistently with personnel needs, 

resulting in stability of human resources of the Company.

According to the above endeavors, in 2008, the Company 

was awarded by the Office of Labor Protection and Welfare to 

be the labor relations and welfare outstanding establishment 

for the 5th year in a row.

2. Participatory Social Development

In the part of participatory social development, the Company gives importance to its personnel who 

not only are the success factor of its operation, but also contributors to the sustainable development and 

growth of Thai society. Accordingly, personnel and stakeholders are encouraged to participate in developing 

communities, helping the unprivileged those in difficulties to have better livelihood, which is the foundation 

of creating a society where everybody lives together happily and sustainably. 

In 2008, the Company carried on the 5-channel deed-doing activity from the “8,000 good deeds 

SBD offers the 80-year-old Great King” on a continual basis by recording good deeds of the participants 

throughout the year. In addition, personnel were encouraged to take part in local development by writing a 

project requesting a “Funds for Beloved Hometowns” in contribution of school or public utility development 

projects in their own domiciles.

Social Development Activities in 2008

5 Channel, Deed-Doing Activities

 > Channel 1: Practice Benevolence for Society

In 2008, Somboon Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries practiced benevolence 

by having its personnel develop class buildings, restrooms, children’s play equipment, install clean drinking 

water system, and arranging recreational activities for children in 6 schools comprising Baan Nong Rakam 

School in Rayong, Wat Bang Chalong Nok, Klong Phraya Nagaraat, and Wat Mongkol Nimit Schools in 

Samutprakarn, and Baan Klong Rakam School in Prachinburi, Foundation for the Blinds in Thailand, and 

Wat Sri Pumpo in Chonburi.

•  Corporate Social Responsibility of Somboon Group
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The Company subsidizes an adequate budget in every activity arrangement. The activities are joined 

by not only Company staff but also their families, partners, shareholders, the Board of Directors, local 

government agencies, and the Social Activity Network.

 > Channel 2: Make Merit

In each year, Somboon Group companies held activities to promote Buddhism by making merit 

though the giving alms to monks at least twice a year. In 2008, additional merit makings were performed 

to mark the 7th day of Her Royal Highness Princess Galyani Vadhana’s passing and to offer robes to Wat 

Sri Phumpho in Rayong.

 > Channel 3: Donate Money

Every benevolence practiced by the Company is joined by its personnel in terms of budgetary 

supports, because everyone deems that even small amounts of participation, when combined, can be 

contributory to creating greatly valuable things. The Company’s personnel and its stakeholders jointly 

perform good deed by donating money to continuously support social activities.

 > Channel 4: Donate things

In order to share with the unprivileged and needy children 

in rural areas, the Company campaigned for the offering by its 

personnel of their clothes, books and belongings used but still 

in good conditions or new stuffs to those in need in several 

occasions in 2008. Joined by of the Public Benefits Club of the 

stakeholders, things were offered in collaboration with: 

 • Pan Nam Jai Club of AAT Ford Co., Ltd., a customer 

of the Company, in giving shoes to school children in 

Nan Province areas;

 • Supports Rong Rien Khong Noo Noo project of 

Samutprakarn Province’s radio amateurs club in giving 

clothes and learning equipment to schools at border 

areas in Tak province’s Um Phang district;

 • Company personnel in giving backpacks as Christmas 

gifts to all blind children under the patronage of the 

Foundation for the Blinds in Thailand.

 > Channel 5: Dedication and Behaving 

The Company has been arranging an activity promoting 

lifestyle behavioral change to its personnel by refraining from 

drinking alcohols during the Rains Retreat during the past five 

years, which has been increasingly and continuously joined by 

its staff. In 2008, there were 1,203 Company staffs, including 

people from nearby communities in the area of Samutprakarn 

province’s Bang Chaloang district, joining and donating bloods 

through the service provided by the Thai Red Cross Society, 

totaling 4 times and another 1 time at Rayong plant. 9-temple 

Buddha Image Deference Activity was held in 1 time in Samuth-

songkram area, 1 time in Supanburi area, and 1 time in Rayong.

In addition to doing good deeds, the Company supports 

and promotes social development in various forms as follows:

Corporate Social Responsibility of Somboon Group  •
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Educational Support

The Company has granted “scholarships for father’s 

children” to be the scholarship for personnel and their children 

as well as youth having good behaviour but have no money 

in the community area of the Company continuously for 10 

years. In 2008, there were 97 awarded persons, amounting 

534,000 baht, on “Children Day”, the Company gave education 

equipment bag to schools and working units to be prizes for 

Children Day activities every year.

Creating Community Development Collaboration

The Company,  in col laborat ion of  Huachiew 

Chalermprakiet University, ran a integrated development 

campaign for Bang Chaloang local area by engaging both  

public and private entities and the local administrative 

organization to jointly make a community development plan  

for directional development of Bang Chaloang in accordance 

with the Sufficiency Economy in terms of education, public 

health and environment, helping those in locally beleaguered 

conditions, and communally economic development. In this 

regard, Huachiew Chalermprakiet University was the center 

of amassing and publicizing knowledge derived from this 

campaign.

Realizing the value of collaboration in creating the 

society, representatives of the Company were delegated to 

join meetings with Bang Chaloang Community, Samutprakarn 

Environment Club, the National Council on Social Welfare 

of Thailand, the Network of Cooperation of Business and 

Social Sectors for Sustainable Development (The Network), 

including such social activities of its customers and social 

activity networks as the forestation with Toyota and Honda 

Foundations, mangrove forestation with Merck and Nestle, 

including with a youth camp, etc.

Promoting Local Customs

Another thing to which the Company gives importance 

is preservation of local customs, supporting the Lotus Flower 

Receiving (Rab Bua) Festival at Samutprakarn’s Bangplee district 

every year and pouring water on the hands of revered elders 

and asking for blessing, which, in addition to strengthening 

relationships between Company personnel and communal 

elders, are the way of keeping Thai customs on.

Funds for Beloved Hometowns

In order to promote and encourage its personnel to use the concept of participatory social develop-

ment to develop their hometowns, the Company has set aside an amount of budget as the “Funds for 

Beloved Hometowns” for them to complete the joint development with communities of school and public 

property renovation in their needy hometowns for faster utilization by local children and people. Throughout 

2008, the funds were given to 6 projects as follows:

 • Classroom Renovation Project, Nong Khluak Ratbamgrung School, Kampaengphet.

 • Drinking Water System Project, Baan Wang Hua Waen Pattana School, Kampaengphet.

 • Classroom Renovation Project, Nong Kham Noi School, Nakon Ratchasima.

 • Layer Raising Project, Baan Subtao School, Nakon Ratchasima.

 • Volleyball Field Renovation Project, Baan Huay Lan School, Petchaboon.

 • General Purpose Building Construction Project, Thung Charoen Village, Nan.

As a result, the Company was given an honorable plaque of its outstanding social development 

activities in 2008 from the Ministry of Social Development and Human Security.

•  Corporate Social Responsibility of Somboon Group
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Competition and Industrial Trend

Trends of Automotive Parts Industry Marketing Conditions

In 2008, Thai economy was affected by factors from several areas, such as external factors like the 

world economy conditions due to sub-prime problems in the United States, and internal factors like the 

political situations leading to people’s non-confidence. These factors rendered the Thai economy in 2008 

to an approximate growth of 3 percent.

According to the economy conditions in 2008 and several factors, the domestic sale of automobiles 

was at 615,270 cars, or declining 2.53 percent from prior year. However, the volume of automobiles 

manufactured for exports was at 775,652 cars, or increasing 12.4 percent from 2007, rendering the overall 

volume of automobiles manufacture at 1,393,742 cars, or increasing 8.26 percent. The statistics of car 

assembly in Thailand is shown in Table 1.

Table 1: Statistics of Car assembly in Thailand

Year
Passenger 

Car 
(Car)

1-Ton Pick 
Up Truck 
(Car)

Other  
Commercial 
Purpose Car

(Car)

Total  
Commercial 
Purpose 
(Car)

Total
(Car)

Growth Rate 
(%)

2547 304,349 597,914 25,818 623,732 928,081 23.66

2548 277,603 822,867 24,846 847,713 1,125,316 21.25

2549 298,819 866,990 22,235 889,225 1,188,044 5.57

2550 315,444 948,388 23,514 971,902 1,287,346 8.36

2551 401,309 974,642 17,791 992,433 1,393,742 8.26

Source: Thai Automotive Industry Association

The Thai automotive industry in 2009 is anticipated to 

have a production volume decline by 30% when compared 

to that of 2008 due to a more drastic depression of the world 

economy, thus affecting the growth of the global and Thai 

automotive industries. For the Thai automotive industry, it is 

expected that automobiles manufacture would be at 980,000 

cars, decreasing from 2008 circa by 30% percent, divided into 

450,000 cars for domestic sales and 530,000 cars for exports.

Despite considerable impacts to the automotive indus-

try in 2009, its future trend in 2-3 years ahead still signifies a 

better growth notwithstanding the postponements of Eco-Car 

manufacture of many carmakers. With the criteria requiring a 

manufacture of not less than 100,000 cars during 5 years for 

an investment to be promoted, however, the future of more 

manufacture of automobiles can be seen clearly, which could 

result in a good future trend of the automotive parts industry too. 

The declining economy might put the operation of the 

automotive and automotive parts industrial businesses in 

2009 into beleaguered conditions. However, it would improve 

in 2010-2011, particularly by the new government policies for 

solving economic and industrial problems, and by expenditures 

stimulation packages public and private sectors, which are likely 

to restore people’s confidence in favor of domestic automobile 

markets. There is a positive factor coming in from the export 

 markets i.e. the handover by the EU of GSP privileges to 

Thailand, resulting in more European export markets. However, 

automotive parts manufacturers are still required to have 

continuous manufacturing developments, especially cost 

reduction in alignment with the economy conditions, product 

quality development, personnel development, etc. for their 

preparedness for future recovery of automobile markets. 

Competition and Industrial Trend  •
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Risk Management and Risk Factors

Risk Management

In 2008, the Company studied and established a Risk Road Map in order to make its risk management 

internationally standardized under the supervision and responsibility of the Enterprise Risk Management 

Committee, with a view to define a risk management policy, oversee and monitor the management of major 

risk events with potential effect to the attainment of its business operation objectives and goals at both 

strategic and operational levels appropriately across the organization, and to link the risk management 

process with business planning in response to the changing organizational environment and maximization 

of highest added values in the business operation for shareholders. 

Risk Factors

Business operation comes with risks. While the Company puts emphasis on the provision of an internationally 

consistent risk management system, such external factors as economic conditions and political stability and 

unique characteristics of the automotive parts industry makes it unable to avoid certain risks which, when occur, 

might significantly affect the attainment by group companies of its business operation objectives. 

The main risk factors threatening the business operation of Somboon Advance Technology Co., Ltd. 

are as follows:

1. Risk from Uncertainty of Regressive 
Economic Conditions Affecting Sales 
Volume

In the fourth quarter of 2008, there was a world economic 
crisis with initial effect to the automotive industry of the nation. 
With such event, the Company’s sales volume in the 4th quarter 
of 2008 dropped 8.6% when compared to that in the third quarter 
of the same year.

As a consequence of such situation, risk factors have 
been continuously monitored and business operation strategies 
have been reviewed in alignment with the situation and risk 
events, by focusing on keeping customer base and products 
distributed to many customers, looking for more opportunities 
for oversea sales, and expanding product not categorized as 
automotive parts by capitalizing on the Company’s expertise, 
such as agricultural engine parts, in order to compensate the 
fiercely dropped sales volume. 

Moreover, the Company has made itself prepared for crisis 
management, such as product cost reduction, stock management 
effectiveness maximization, unnecessary expenditures cut,  
investment projects deferment, personnel development in response 
to changing circumstances, and readiness for competition when 
the situation is brought back to normal i.e. designing products to 
keep its competitiveness in the long run.

2. Exchange Rate Risk 

In 2008, Baht currency varied greatly whilst machinery, 
equipment and raw materials (steel) were ordered both from 
local distributors and directly from abroad. Accordingly, the 
Company had a policy to reduce the impact from the varying 
exchange rate so as to make a balance between its assets 
and liabilities in foreign currencies.

In 2008, the imported machinery and equipment 
90% of total volume which imported volume 58% of the total 
purchase volume. Therefore, in order to reduce the impact and 
make a balance between its assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies, the Company had a policy to use forward contract 
as a risk management tool to lessen the level of impact from 
varying exchange rate and to enable price adjustment with its 
customers. 

Nevertheless, in the long run, the Company has a 
policy to increase the proportion of oversea sales in order to 
reduce the exchange rate risk. Currently, the main currencies 
used ordering raw materials and in exporting are US Dollar 
and Japanese Yen.

•  Risk Management and Risk Factors
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3. Risk from Varying Prices and  
Raw Materials 

Steel is the Company’s major raw material representing 

42 percent of the total cost of goods sold. About 83 percent 

of the total steel orders are imported because they cannot be 

manufactured domestically. In 2008, prices of such upstream 

raw materials as ores and coals for iron smelting plants varied 

and increased substantially, leading to the prices of finished 

steel in global markets being adjusted higher approximately 

35% percent average when compared to that in 2007 before 

adjusted lower in late 2008.

Nonetheless, a risk management system was established 

to constantly monitor the movement of steel prices and key raw 

materials prices in global markets and to assess the demands and 

rates of product capacity of the markets during each period, with 

inventory management along with raw materials budget control, 

relationship and product development with steel manufacturers 

in place. In addition, price management is used to negotiate with 

customers for price increase when steel prices are adjusted higher 

in order to secure the Company’s gross profit.

4. Warranty Claim Risk

At end of 2008, the Company had outstanding warranty 

claims totaling approximately to 0.02 percent when compared 

to 2008 sales volume, which were not significant. However, the 

Company and its subsidiaries were ISO/TS 16949 certified, 

which standard quality system is specifically for automotive 

part products and has been recognized by its world-class car 

assembler customers.

Furthermore, the Company has made available 

regular and strict audits and monitoring from internal and 

external auditors to ensure that its operating processes and 

procedures and product quality control are adhered to at all 

times. The Company is confident that customer satisfaction  

can be perpetually maintained in terms of product quality. 

5. Implementation for Safety, Environment and Communities

Operating automotive parts manufacturing business might pose risks in the form of dangers and 

losses with potential effect to the Company. Realizing the importance of the potential risks, the Company has 

defined a clear policy concerning safety, environment and communities, with emphasis put on design process, 

manufacturing infrastructure, manufacturing system, manufacturing control system, alert control system, 

including prioritization and regular updating of working procedures, staff training on safety and environment 

on a regularly continuous basis. 

In addition, the Company constantly promotes activities preventing risk exposures to safety and environment, 

such as risk assessment and hazard identification and suppression involving staff participation, including continuous 

improvement of safe working conditions, activities related to strict compliance with laws, ordinances and other 

applicable provisions, activities fostering accountability in safety and occupational health both in and off-hours, 

preparatory activities for emergency response, such as fire extinguishing drill, fire evacuation drill, etc.

In respect of implementations for safety, environment, communities and the society, air quality and 

wastewater within the Company are measured and monitored. Air quality in the surrounding atmosphere is 

monitored on a regularly continuous basis. Environmental and pollution management technologies have been 

researched, developed and adopted in the improvement of operating effectiveness of departments, such as 

energy preservation technology, installation of dust capturing and elimination system, installation of manufac-

turing process wastewater treatment system, reduction of wastes from both the manufacturing process and 

general use, etc. Such implementations have instruction manuals indicating clearly the duties and responsibilities 

of units concerned. Working procedures in relation to environmental and safety issues were established for 

adherence by all areas. Moreover, management shop floor is required in order for the implementations to be 

in strict compliance with the requirements.

Risk Management and Risk Factors  •
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Major Changes and Developments
in Year 2008

• February 2008 The Board of Directors resolved to approve the Company’s expansion of its axle shaft 
manufacture (in the part of Machine Line H) at Eastern Seaboard Industrial Park, Rayong, 
with an investment fund Baht 269.60 million, already commencing on December 2008.

• March 2008 The Board of Directors resolved for BSK’s investment in the construction of a new 
plant to expand coil spring production capacity at Amata City Industrial Park, Rayong, 
with an investment fund of Baht 286 million, already commencing on February 2009.

• March 2008 The Board of Directors resolved for ICP’s purchase of land in Amata City Industrial 
Park, Rayong, to accommodate the expansion of production capacity in the future with 
an investment fund Baht 104 million.

• March 2008 The Board of Directors resolved for SBM’s investment in the establishment of a testing 
and supply center of brake disc and brake drum at its headquarters in Samutprakarn 
province, with an investment fund Baht 55 million, expected for an initial trial use in 
3rd quarter of 2009.

• March 2008 The Board of Directors resolved to approve the Company’s expansion of its axle shaft 
manufacture (in the part of Forging Line) at Eastern Seaboard Industrial Park, Rayong, 
with an investment fund of Baht 163 million, expected to manufacture by end of 2009.

• April 2008 The Board of Directors resolved to approve SBM’s investment the construction of a warehouse 
at Amata City Industrial Park, Rayong, with an investment fund of Baht 21.5 million.

• May 2008 The Board of Directors resolved to approve the Company’s installation of an ERP 
(Enterprise Resource Planning) with an investment fund of Baht 47.75 million.

• May 2008 The Board of Directors resolved to approve the Company’s expansion of its axle 
shaft manufacture for big truck at Eastern Seaboard Industrial Park, Rayong, with 
an investment fund of Baht 259.76 million. After project review, partial investment in 
machinery was allowed, and the investment in machine line should be delayed until 
the automotive industrial situations have a good trend.

• May 2008 The Board of Directors resolved to approve the SBM’s expansion of Hub Front’s production 
capacity at its headquarters in Samutprakarn province, with an investment fund of Baht 
14.18 million.

• May 2008 The Company received an award for outstanding, provincial establishment in terms of safety.

• September 2008 The Board of Directors resolved to approve SBM’s investment in the manufacture of 
new products - Differential Case and Differential Case Bearing - at Amata City Industrial 
Park, Rayong, with an investment fund of Baht 104 million.

• September 2008 Somboon Group’s three companies i.e. SAT, SBM and BSK have been award by the 
Department of Welfare and Labor Protection to be an establishment with outstanding 
labor relations and labor welfare.

• October 2008 The Company was conferred an outstanding social activities honor plaque for 2008 
from the Ministry of Social Development and Human Security.

• Rewards  - Best Quality Award from Honda& Direct Delivery Award from Isuzu (SBM)
  from customer - Quality Award: Excellent in zero defects from MMTh (BSK)
  in 2008 - Quality Award: Excellent in zero defects from MMTh (SAT)

•  Major Changes and Developments
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The top ten list of shareholders as shown in the registration book as at December 31, 2008

Shareholders No. of shares 
hold Percentage

1. Somboon Holding Co., Ltd. 79,999,200 26.67 

2. Kitaphanich Family 78,024,800 26.01

3. Thailand Equity Fund 30,000,000 10.00

4. Pathara Securities Plc. 18,015,700 6.01

5. Morgan Stanley & Co International Limited 12,671,200 4.22

6. Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. 9,215,300 3.07

7. American International Assurance Company, Limited-Apex 6,607,000 2.20

8. GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL 3,790,496 1.26

9. The Bank of New York (Nominees) Limited 2,910,800 0.97

10. Ms. Nongkran Krainit 2,815,000 0.94

Remarks:
- Investors can update shareholders’ details in the Company’s website prior 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders date. 
- Fund’s major shareholders consist of International Finance Corporation (IFC), California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), Asian 

Development Bank (ADB), the Ministry of Finance etc.

Major Shareholders 

Limited of Foreigner Shareholder

The foreign shareholders cannot hold shares of the company more than 49 percent of the outstanding and paid-up shares 

on December 31, 2008, and they held shares of the company for 13.24 percent. 

Major Shareholders   •
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The Company had changed management structure from February 1, 2009 consists of 4 groups of 

committee are The Board of Directors, The Executive Board, The Audit committee, and The Nomination 

and Compensation Committee the name listed by duty as following.

Board of Directors consists of

1. Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um Independent Director/ Chairman

2. Mr. Yongyuth Kitaphanich Director/ Vice Chairman

3. Mr. Panja Senadisai Independent Director

4. Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng Independent Director

5. Mr. Sobson  Ketsuwan Independent Director

6. Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol Independent Director

7. Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich Director

8. Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich Director

9. Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich Director

10. Mr. Surasak Khaoroptham Director

Mr. Thanakit  Permpoonkantisuk is a Company Secretary 

Note:
- Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um is an independent director replacing Mr. Chira Panupong from March 24, 2008
- Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol is an independent director from April 24, 2008

Management Structure 

Authorized Directors

Directors authorized to sign in binding the company 

consist of Mr. Yongyuth Kitaphanich, Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich 

Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich and Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich. Any 

two out of these four Directors shall commonly sign and affix 

the company common seal.

Powers and Duties of the Company’s  
Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for shareholders in 

relation with the Company’s business operation and supervision  

of the management to be in accordance with the policy, guidelines 

and objectives with the maximum benefit to the shareholders 

and within the frame of good ethics and morality and to take 

the interest of all interested parties into account.

The Board of Directors has the duties to act in compliance 

with laws, objectives and articles of Association of the Company 

and the meeting of shareholders’ resolutions with honesty and 

care for the shareholders’ interests, at the present and in the  

long term, including the acting in compliance with the criteria 

and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand.

In performing their duties, the Board of Directors shall 

appoint the president to be responsible for the Company’s 

business operation.

In supervising all the Company’s business, the Board 

of Directors has determined the following matters to be the 

authority and responsibility of the Board of Directors who shall 

consider for the approval.

1. Policy, business conducts strategy guidelines,  

targets, plans and annual budget of the company 

and subsidiaries.

2. The Company’s monthly and quarterly business 

performances comparing to the plan and budget and 

the consideration of the further trends of the year.

3. The investment in the annual non-budgetary project.

Management Structure   •
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4. Spending on the investment capital at 5% in excess 
of the investment budget in the approved project and 
10% in excess of the other investment budgets that 
are not the project investment budget.

5. The purchase and sale of assets, the purchase of 
business and the participation in  the co-investment  
project that is not contradicted to the Stock Exchange 
of Thailand’s criteria and not exceeding in values 
authorized to the President.

6. The transaction or any actions that shall result in the  
major impact against the Company’s financial status, 
debt burden, business operation strategy and reputation. 

7. Any contract execution that is not related to the 
normal business operation and the contract related 
to the major regular business operation.

8. Inter-related transaction between the Company, 
subsidiaries, associated companies and the related 
persons in part of the transactions that are not meet 
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange and  
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

9. Any transactions effecting the Company’s capital structure 
at the debt ratio against the capital that is exceeding 1.5:1.

10. Payment of the interim dividends.
11. The charge of policy and practical methods with the 

significance related to the accounting, risk management 
and internal audit.

12. Employment of the President and senior executives.
13. Determination and change of the approval authority 

conferred to the President and senior executives.
14. Approval of the amount of salaries and bonuses 

or bonus formula adjustment or the formula of the 
annual remuneration adjustment of the executives 
and employees.

15. The appointment proposal and the termination of the 
Company’s Directors and secretary status.

16. Authorization of power and duties to any of the 
Company’s President or Director, including the 
revision of the said power and duties authorization, 
however, this must not be in contradiction with the 
criteria and requirements of the Stock Exchange and 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 

17. The appointment and the determination of authority 
of the Sub-committee.

18. Arrangement and supervision for having the 
management available in accordance with the  
good corporate governance principle. 

19. The appointment of Directors in the subsidiaries.
20. Any other actions to be in accordance with laws, 

objectives, Articles of Association and resolutions 
of the meeting of shareholders. 

Orientation for new directors

The Board of Directors determines for holding an orientation for new directors, to create knowledge 

and understanding in business and operation of several aspects of the Company, for preparedness in the 

duty performance of the directors; at the same time, there is the policy to enhance knowledge and new 

point of view to every director, in the supervision of the business, industrial condition, business, technology 

and innovation, etc to support the work of the directors effectively.

Executive Board consists of Chairman who is an independent director

1. Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan Chairman

2. Mr. Yongyuth  Kitaphanich Director 

3. Mr. Verayut  Kitaphanich Director

4. Mr. Surasak  Khaoroptham  Director

Mr. Thanakit Permpoonkantisuk is a Secretary to the Executive Board

Note:
- Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan is a chairman of the Executive Board from May 1, 2008

The Executive Director holds a term of three years.

•  Organization Chart
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Powers and Duties of the Executive Board

1. Audit

 - Policy, direction, business strategies and management structure,as well as business 

operational criteria of the Company are screened in alignment with the economic conditions 

and competitions

 - Business plan and annual budget

 - Every Investment project 

2. Approve or not approve

 - Investment project in the capital not exceeded 50 million baht which should be involved 

the main business of the company and IRR not less than 15% excepted investment for 

maintenance, improve efficiency or machinery compensate. 

 - Open and Close the account of the Company in other Financial Institute

 - Written-off assets

 - Sell non-operation assets not more than of 10 million baht

3. Follow and Supervisory the operations

 - Strategy, plan and project including in annual business plan which have to approved by the 

Board of Directors

 - Financial performance of the Company

 - Risk Management performance of the Company

4. Report to Board of Directors

 - Monthly of financial performance of the Company

 - The lists of Executive Board approved or not approved

5. Other operations which would assigned by the Board of Director

Audit and Corporate Governance 
Committee consists of all Independent Director

1. Mr. Panja  Senadisai Chairman

2. Mr. Rangsin  Suebsaeng Director

3. Mr. Sobson  Ketsuwan Director

Mr. Witsarut Boonto is a secretary to the Audit& and 

Corporate Governance Committee

Note:
- Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan had resigned from member of the Audit Committee to be 

a chairman of the Executive Board from May 1, 2008 and the Board of Directors 
appointed Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol as a member of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee and Corporate Governance 

Committee holds a term of three years.

Powers and Duties of Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee

1. Review financial reports against the accounting 

standard and ensure adequate disclosure.

2. Review the internal control and internal audits 

to ensure suitability and effectiveness; consider 

independency of the Internal Audit Unit.

3. Review the Company’s performance against the law 

on securities and stock exchange, Stock Exchange’s 

requirements, or applicable laws.

4. Review related-party transactions or any actions with 

potential conflicts of interests against applicable rules 

and ordinances.

Organization Chart  •
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5. Review the suitability and adequacy of risk management 

of the Company.

6. Consider, select, nominate, appoint and propose 

Company auditor emolument; determine auditor 

independency; hold a meeting with auditors at least 

once a year without management participation.

7. Concur with appointment, transfer and laurels of the 

Chief of Internal Control Unit; consider concurring 

with plans, budgets and manpower of the Unit.

8. Furnish a corporate governance report of the Audit 

Committee inside the Company’s annual report, 

signed by the Chairman of Audit Committee and 

containing at least the following key attributes:

 - Accuracy and reliability of the financial report.

 - Adequacy of the internal control.

 - Compliance with the law on securities, SET  

requirements or applicable laws.

 - Auditors’ fitness.

 - Transactions with potential conflicts of interests.

 - Audit Committee meetings and attendance of 

individual members.

 - Opinions or notices arising out of performing duties.

 - Any other matters the shareholders and general 

investors should know.

9. In performing its duties, the Audit Committee is 

empowered to invite the management or pertaining 

staff of the Company to give opinions, join a meeting, 

or submit documents deemed relevant or necessary.

10. Have power to hire a consultant or third parties to 

provide opinions or consultancy in case of necessity, 

the expenses borne by the Company.

11. Consider and review the scope of powers and duties 

and responsibilities and evaluate the Audit Committee’s 

performance regularly on a yearly basis.

12. Perform any acts designated by the Board of Directors.

13. Report the Audit Committee’s performance to the 

Board of Directors every quarter.

14. Conduct an audit and report the preliminary audit 

to the SEC Office and auditors. In case the Audit 

Committee is informed by the auditors of any reasonably 

suspicious events, action must be taken within 30 

days from its receipt of such notification.

15. Acknowledge a copy of report of Company directors 

and executives regarding their or other related 

persons’ conflicts of interests in relation to the 

business management of the Company or its 

subsidiaries, subject to the criteria, conditions and 

methods stipulated under the Capital Market  

Commission‘s notifications. 

16. Review the corporate governance policy and business ethics; monitor compliance with the  

policy regularly at least once a year.

17. Consider appointing working groups to undertake supporting corporate governance and  

business ethics as appropriate.

Nomination and Compensation Committee consits of Chairman who is an independent 

director

1. Mr. Rangsin  Suebsaeng Chairman

2. Mr. Panja  Senadisai Director

3. Mr. Surasak  Khaoroptham Director

Mr. Wasant  Chawajaroenpan is a Secretary to the Nomination and Compensation Committee 

The Compensation Committee holds a term of three years.

•  Organization Chart
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Powers abd Duties of the Nomination and Compensation Committee

1. Consider the criteria and recruiting process for suit-

ably qualified individuals to take the positions of 

director and President. The Vice President position 

is to be preliminarily considered by the President and 

then proposed to the Nomination and Compensation 

Committee for its concurrence and finally proposed 

to the Board of Directors for its consideration.

2. Select and appoint individuals to take the positions 

of director and President upon expiration of an office 

term or a vacancy. The Vice President position is 

to be preliminarily considered by the President and 

then proposed to the Nomination and Compensation 

Committee for its concurrence and finally proposed 

to the Board of Directors for consideration.

3. Follow up the succession plan and evaluate the 

President’s performance. The Vice President’s 

performance is to be monitored and assessed and 

then proposed to the Nomination and Compensation 

Committee for its concurrence before being proposed 

to the Board of Directors for consideration.

4. Define a remuneration policy for directors and 

such top management as the President and Vice 

President, and propose it to the Board of Directors 

for consideration and approval.

5. Propose remunerations of Board members, 

sub-committees and top management, such the 

President and Vice President appointed by the Board 

of Directors. Such remunerations are inclusive of 

meeting allowance, salary, bonus, stocks and other 

applicable benefits.

6. Report its resulting performance to the Board of Directors at least once a year.

7. Carry out other tasks designated by the Board of Directors.

Management consists of

1. Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich President and acting for Vice President - Human Resources  

   and Administration

2. Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich Executive Vice President

3. Mr. Yoshitaka Obayashi Senior Vice President - Sales& Maketing

4. Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich Vice President - President Office

5. Mr. Worapote Chutchaikulsiri Vice President - Finance&  Accounting

6. Mr. Wasant Chawajaroenpan Vice President-Operations SBM/ ICP

7. Mr. Phakorn Thongcharoen Vice President-Operations SAT/ BSK

8. Mr. Wichai Srimavon Vice President - Procurement and Quality Development

9. Mrs. Jiraporn Srisomwong Vice President - Information Tecgnology

Note:
- Mrs. Jiraporn Srisomwong is a vice president – information technology from June 2, 2008
- Mr. Phakorn Thongcharoen is a vice president – operations from November 3, 2008

Powers and Duties of the President

1. To prepare the policy, business conduct strategy guidelines, target, work plan and annual budget 

of the company and subsidiaries submitted to the Board of Directors for the approval.

2. To undertake in accordance with the policy, business conduct strategy guidelines, target, work 

plan and annual budget of the company and subsidiaries as approved by the Board of Directors.

Organization Chart  •
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3. To report the monthly and quarterly business performance of the company and subsidiaries 

in comparison of the plan and budget to the Company’s Board of Directors together with the 

recommendations.

4. To approve the expenses and investment capital that are not in the annual budget for not 

exceeding one million baht on each occasion but the report has to be made to the Board of 

Directors for acknowledgement. 

5. Other matters assigned by the Board of Directors.

In this regard, the exercise of power of the President is not included (Must not be contradicted with 

the Security and Exchange Commission’s Criteria) the power in approving the transaction causing the 

President or contradicted persons to have the interest or may have the conflict of interest in otherwise 

manners with the company and subsidiaries including the transaction provided to have the approval of 

the meeting of the Board of Directors or shareholders such as the inter-related transactions or acquisition 

or disposal of the assets of the Company and subsidiaries.

Evaluating President’s Resulting Performance

The Board of Directors requires the President’s resulting performance to be evaluated regularly on 

a yearly basis against the goals and evaluation criteria linked to the success of the strategic plan in order 

to determine appropriately his remuneration and incentive reward.

The number of Board members should fit the size of the 

business. Currently, there are 10 directors, 7 of which are non-

executive directors and the remaining 3 are not. The Company 

has 5 independent directors.

Independent Director is 50% of the Board of Directors, 

consists of;

1. Mr. Sansern  Wongcha-um

2. Mr. Panja  Senadisai

3. Mr. Rangsin  Suebsaeng

4. Mr. Sobson  Ketsuwan

5. Mr. Paitoon  Taveebhol

The Company definition of Independent Director as 

following;

1. A person holding no more than of paid-up capital of 

the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates companies, 

this shall include shares held by relating persons.

2. A non-executive directors in the management of 

the Company, its subsidiaries, affiliates or major 

shareholders, a person who is not an authorized 

director, an employee or consultant regularly receiv-

ing monthly salary from the Company, its subsidiar-

ies, affiliates or major shareholders.

3. A director with no direct or indirect benefit or 

interest in financial or in management aspects of 

the Company.

4. A director who is not the auditor of the Company, any 

subsidiary company, affiliates or juristic person that 

may have conflicts.

5. A director who is not any professional service 

provider who receives the service charge of more 

than 2 million baht per annum from the Company, 

any subsidiary company, associated company or 

juristic person that may have conflicts.

6. A director who is neither related or nor be a closed 

relative of the Company’s excutives or major 

shareholders.

7. A director not appointed as a representative to 

maintain the interests of the Company’s directors 

or major shareholders

8. A person who is able to perform duties, express 

opinions or report results of performances based 

on his duties entrusted by the Board of Directors 

independently.

Structure of Board of Directors and its Element

•  Organization Chart
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Recruiting of Board of Directors and Management

The Nominating and Compensation Committee undertakes to recruit directors in replacement of 

those resigning or retiring by rotation or of vacancies on the following procedure:

1. Consideration is taken based on the structure and element of the whole Board of Directors 

enabling the Company to have a strong Board of Directors.

2. Choose for directorships from individuals who are knowledgeable, competent, honest and 

experienced in relevant businesses to meet the requirement of the Company, Office of Security and  

Exchange Commission, and Securities and Stock Exchange Act.

Once considered appropriate by the Nominating Committee, the candidate should then be proposed 

to the Board of Directors for concurrence an approved appointment at a general shareholders meeting.

For the searching and selection of persons to be appointed to the position of executives, the 

Nomination and Compensation Committee held the follow-up activity to know the progress of the succession 

plan covering the position of president and vice president, in order to be sure that the company had 

managements who had knowledge, ability and could succeed important positions in the future.

Organization Chart  •
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Details of Directors and Management

Name/Position
Age

(years)
Education

% 
Share
held

Work experience in the last 5 years

Period Position/Company

1.  Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um
 • Independent Director/ 
Chairman of the Board

61  • Master of Business Admin.
University of Bridgeport, USA.

 • Bachelor of Economic  
Thammasart University

 • Academic of National Defense 
College of Thailand, 37

 • Role of the Chairman  
Program (RCP) 8/2003

 • Finance for Non-Finance 
Directors (FND) 17/2005

 • Director Accreditation 
Program (DAP) 42/2005

2008-Present  • Independent Director, Somboon Advance 
Technology Pcl.

 • Chairman, Bualuang Securities Pcl.
 • Independent Director, Deves Insurance Pcl.
 • Independent Director, The Erawan Group Pcl.

2003-Present  • Honorary Director, National Institute of 
Development Administration

2003-2006  • Chairman, Bualuang Securities Pcl.

2003-2005  • Executive Chairman, Bualuang Securities Pcl.

2002-Present  • Consultant Institute of Economic and 
Social Research, Dhurakij Pundit University

2002-Present  •  Consultant Project, Bereau of the 
Crown Property

2002-2006  • Independent Director, Deves Insurance Pcl.

2.  Mr. Yongyuth Kitaphanich
 • Director/ Vice Chairman
 • Executive Board 
 • Authorized Director

57  • Mini MBA, Thammasart 
University 

 • Bachelor: Commerce and 
Accountancy, Chulalongkorn 
University

 • Academic of National Defense 
College of Thailand, 9

 • Director Certification Program 
(DCP) 2/2000

 • Role of the Chairman (RCP) 
7/2000

2.22 2004-Present  • Vice Chairman/Executive Board, Somboon 
Advance Technology Pcl.

1998-Present  • Vice Chairman, Tsuchiyoshi Somboon Coated 
Sand Co.,Ltd.

 • Director, Yamada Somboon Co.,Ltd.

1994-Present  • Director, Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial 
Co.,Ltd.

 • Director, Bangkok Spring Industrial Co.,Ltd.

3.  Mr. Panja Senadisai
 • Independent Director
 • Chairman of the Audit  
& CG Committee 

 • Member of the Nomination 
& Compensation 
Committee

60  • Master of Business Admin.
Suffolk University, (USA.)

 • Director Certification Program 
(DCP) 20/2002

 • Audit Committee Program 
(ACP) 2/2004

 • Role of Compensation 
Committee (RCC) 2/2007

0.01 2007-Present  • Member of the Nomination& Compentsation 
Committee Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2006-Present  • Chairman of the Audit& CG Committee, 
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2005-Present  • Deirector/Chairman of the Audit Committee, 
Pylon Pcl.

2004-Present  • Independent Director, Somboon Advance 
Technology Pcl.

 • Chairman, Deva Property Pcl.

2004-2007  • Chairman of the Compensation Committee, 
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2006  • Member of the Audit Committee, Somboon 
Advance Technology Pcl.

2003-Present  • Director/ Member of the Audit Committee, 
Rasa Property Development Pcl.

2002-Present  • Director/ Member of the Audit Committee/
Chairman of the Compensation Committee, 
Trinity Wattana Pcl.

1999-2006  • Director/ Advisor/ Member of the Compensa-
tion Committee, CVD Entertainment Pcl.

1993-2007  • Director/ Member of theCompensation Com-
mittee, SMC Motors Pcl.

1983-Present  • Director, KCE Electronics Pcl.

The Board of Directors and Management  •
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Details of Directors and Management

Name/Position
Age

(years)
Education

% 
Share
held

Work experience in the last 5 years

Period Position/Company

4.  Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng
 • Independent Director
 • Member of the Audit &  
CG Committee

 • Chairman of the Nomination 
& Compensation Committee

59  • Master of Business Admin-
istration (Finance) St. Louis 
University, USA.

 • Audit Committee Program 
(ACP) 3/2004

 • Director Accreditation 
Program (DAP) 11/2004

 • Role of Compensation 
Committee (RCC) 3/2007

2007-Present  • Chairman of the Nomination& Compensation 
Committee, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2006-Present  • Independent Director/Member of the Audit& CG 
Committee, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-Present  • Director/Chairman of the Audit Committee, 
Thai Laminate Manufacturer Co., Ltd.

2004-2007  • Director/Member of the Audit Committee, 
Swedish Motors Corporation Public Co., Ltd.

2003-Present  • Director/ Chairman of the Audit Committee, 
Samart I-Mobile Public Co., Ltd.

2002-Present  • Vice Chairman/Member of the Audit 
Committee, Krungthai Card Public Co., Ltd

2002-2008  • Director/Executive Board/Member of the  
Nomination& Compensation Committee/ 
Chairman of IT Corporate Planning, Government 
Housing Bank

1999-2008  • Director/Member of the Audit Committee,  
Hua Thai Manufacturing Public Co., Ltd.

1989-2008  • Executive Board, Saranchol Development Co., Ltd.

5.  Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan
 • Independent Director
 • Chairman of the Executive 
Board

63  • B.Eng. (Honors) Industrial 
Eng.Chulalongkorn 
University, 1996

 • M.A.B. General Management, 
U of Southern California

 • M.S. Industrial & System  
Engineering, U of Southern  
California

 • International Senior 
Management Program 
(ISMP), Harvard  Business 
School

 • Finance for Non-Finance 
Directors (FND) 37/2007

 • Audit Committee Program 
(ACP) 19/2007

 • Director Certification Program 
(DCP) 97/2007

2008-Present  • Chairman of the Executive Board, Somboon 
Advance Technology Pcl.

2007-Present  • Independent Director, Somboon Advance 
Technology Pcl.

2007-2008  • Member of the Audit Committee/Chairman 
of the Compesation Committee/Member of 
the Nomination& CG Committee, Somboon 
Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-Present  • Director/Advisor, The Siam Cement Industry 
Association The Federation of Thai Industries

2003-Present  • Advisor to the Board, Siam Moulding Plaster 
Co.,Ltd.

2003-2007  • Advisor to the Management,The Siam  
Cement Pcl.

2003-2007  • Advisor to the Board, Siam Saniraty Ware 
Co.,Ltd.

6.  Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol
 • Independent Director
 • Member of the Audit & CG 
Committee

58  • M.B.A., Kasetsart University
 • B.A. (Accounting), 
Ramkhamhaeng University

 • Certificate in Auditing, 
Thammasat University

 • Director Accreditation 
Program (DAP) 4/2003

 • Director Certification Program 
(DCP) 38/2003

 • Audit Committee Program 
(ACP) 6/2005

 • Role of the Chairman (RCP) 
11/2005

 • Chartered Director Program 
(CDP) 3/2008

2008-Present  • Independent Director/ Member of the Audit & CG 
Committee, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

 • Audit and Evaluation Committee, Walailak 
University

2004-Present  • President, Mater Dei Institute

2002-Present  • Independent Director/ Chairman of the Audit 
Committee, Central Pattana Pcl.

2003-2005  • Managing Director, BT Business Consulting Co.,Ltd.

1991-2005  • President& Secretary General, The ASEAN 
Federation of Accountants

•  The Board of Directors and Management
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Details of Directors and Management

Name/Position
Age

(years)
Education

% 
Share
held

Work experience in the last 5 years

Period Position/Company

7.  Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich
 • Director
 • Executive Board
 • Authorized Director
 • President

51  • Bechelor of Mechanical Eng., 
Eckert Technology Institute 
(Germany)

 • Director Accreditation 
Program(DAP) 29/2004

3.47 2004-Present  • Director/Executive Board/President, Somboon 
Advance Technology Pcl.

1994-Present  • Director/President, Somboon Malleable Iron 
Industrial Co.,Ltd.

 • Director/President, Bangkok Spring Industrial 
Co.,Ltd.

 • Director/Vice President, Nisshinbo Somboon 
Automotive Co.,Ltd.

 • Director/ Vice President, Somboon Somic 
Manufacturing Co.,Ltd.

8.  Mr. Yonkiat Kitaphanich
 • Director
 • Authorized Director
 • Executive Vice President

46  • M.B.A., National Institute of 
Development Administration

 • Master of Industrial 
Engineering, Waseda 
University (Japan)

 • Bachelor of Mechanical 
Engineering, King Mongkut’s  
Institute Technology 
Ladkrabang

 • Director Accreditation 
Program (DAP) 28/2004

 • Finance for Non-Finance  
Directors (FND) 15/2005

 • Director Certification Program 
(DCP) 53/2005

2.22 2007-Present  • Executive Vice President, Somboon Advance 
Technology Pcl.

 • Chairman, International Casting Products 
Co.,Ltd.

2004-Present  • Director, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2006  • Senior Vice President - Operations, Somboon 
Advance Technology Pcl.

 • Acting for Managing Director, Bangkok Spring 
Industrial Co.,Ltd.

1998-Present  • Director/Vice President, Somboon Malleable 
Iron Industrial Co.,Ltd.

 • Director/Vice President, Bangkok Spring 
Industrial Co.,Ltd.

9.  Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich
 • Director
 • Authorized Director
 • Vice President - President 
Office

44  • M.B.A., Sasin Graduate  
Institute of Business  
Administration of  
Chulalongkorn University

 • Bachelor of Business  
Administration in Finance and  
Management (BBA), Simon 
fraser University (Canada)

 • Director Accreditation  
Program (DAP) 28/2004

1.73 2007-Present  • Vice President - President Office, Somboon 
Advance Technology Pcl.

 • Director, International Casting Products 
Co.,Ltd.

 • Director/Executive Director, Thai Listed 
Companies Association

2004-Present  • Director, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2006  • General Manager - Marketing & Business 
Development, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

1997-Present  • Director, Bangkok Spring Industrial Co.,Ltd.

10. Mr. Surasak Khaoroptham
 • Director
 • Executive Board
 • Member of the Nomina-
tion & Compensation 
Committee

43  • Master of Business  
Administration, University  
of Pennsylvania (USA.)

 • Master of Science, Operation 
Research, University of 
Michigan (USA.)

 • Bachelor of Electrical 
Engineering King Mongkut’s  
Institute Technology 
Ladkrabang

 • Director Accreditation  
Program (DAP) 9/2004)

2008-Present  • Director, SNC Former Pcl.

 • Director, Asiasoft Corporation Pcl.

2007-Present  • Member of the Nomonation& Compensation 
Committee, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2006-Present  • Executive Board, Somboon Advance 
Technology Pcl.

 • Chairman, Asia Books Co.,Ltd.
 • Director, Mermaid Maritime Pcl. 
 • Director, Easy Buy Pcl.

2004-Present  • Director, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2003-Present  • Managing Director, Altus Advisory Co.,Ltd.

The Board of Directors and Management  •
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Details of Directors and Management

Name/Position
Age

(years)
Education

% 
Share
held

Work experience in the last 5 years

Period Position/Company

11. Mr. Yoshitaka Obayashi
 • Senior Vice President  
Sales & Marketing

55  • Bachelor of Machinery  
Engineering, National Nagoya 
Technical University (Japan)

2004-Present  • Senior Vice President - Sales& Marketing, 
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2006  • Acting for Vice President - Operations,  
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

1996-2004  • Vice President - Marketing, Bangkok Spring 
Industrial Co.,Ltd.

12. Mr. Worapote Chutchaikulsiri
 • Vice President  
Finance & Accounting

50  • M.A. Executive Master of  
Accountancy, Chulalongkorn 
University

 • Bachelor of Commerce and 
Accountancy, Thammasat 
University

2007-Present  • Director, International Casting Products Co.,Ltd.

2004-Present  • Vice President - Finance& Accounting, 
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2006  • Vice President - Finance& Administration, 
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2002-2004  • Executive Director, Bangkok Spring  
Industrial Co.,Ltd.

13. Mr. Wichai Srimavon
 • Vice President 
Procurement & Quality 
Development

47  • Master of Education in  
Quality Management,  
Suan Sunandha Rajabhat 
University

 • Bachelor of Public  
Administration, Sukhothai 
University

0.02 2008-Present  • Vice President - Procurement & Quality 
Development, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2007-2008  • Vice President - Procurement & Logistics, 
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2005-2006  • General Manager - Corporate Planning,  
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2005  • General Manager - Quality Development,  
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2000-2004  • Director - Research & Development, Bangkok 
Spring Industrial Co.,Ltd.

14. Mr. Wasant Chawajaroenpan
 • Vice President  
Operation SBM/ ICP

45  • Master of Science in  
Business and Administration, 
Strayer College (USA.)

 • Bachelor of Science,  
Chiangmai University

2008-Present  • Vice President - Operation SBM/ ICP,  
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2007-Present  • Director, International Casting Products Co.,Ltd.

2007-2008  • Vice President - Human Resources & 
Administration, Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2002-2006  • Managing Director, Somboon Malleable Iron 
Industrial Co.,Ltd.

15. Mr. Phakorn Thongcharoen
 • Vice President  
Operation SAT/ BSK

47  • Bachelor of Mechanical  
Engineering, King Mongkut’s  
institute Technology  
Ladkrabang

 • Mini MBA, Eastern Asia 
University

2008-Present  • Vice President - Operation SAT/ BSK,  
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2008  • Factory Manager, Polymatech (Thailand) 
Co.,Ltd.

16. Mrs. Jiraporn Srisomwong
 • Vice President  
Information Technology

42  • M.B.A., University of San 
Francisco, USA.

 • Bachelor of Commerce and 
Accountancy, Chulalongkorn 
University

2008-Present  • Vice President - Information Technology,  
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

2004-2008  • Country IT Manager (Thailand and Malaysia), 
Tyco Electronics (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

•  The Board of Directors and Management
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Name

Ordinary shares

December 31, 

2008

December 31, 

2007

Increase 

(Decrease)

1. Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um - - -

2. Mr. Yongyuth Kitaphanich 6,660,900 6,660,900 -

3. Mr. Panja Senadisai 20,000 20,000 -

4. Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng - - -

5. Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan - - -

6. Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol - - -

7. Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich 10,410,100 10,410,100 -

8. Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich 6,660,900 6,660,900 -

9. Mrs. Napatsorn Kitaphanich 5,180,900 5,180,900 -

10. Mr. Surasak Khaoroptham - - -

11. Mr. Yoshitaka Obayashi - - -

12. Mr. Worapote Chutchaikulsiri - - -

13. Mr. Wasant Chawajaroenpan - - -

14. Mr. Wichai Srimavon 50,000 70,000 (20,000)

15. Ms. Jiraporn Srisomwong - - -

16. Mr. Phakorn Thongcharoen - - -

Note:
- Information from report on securities holding of the Board of Directors as at December 30, 2008

Shareholding of the Board of Directors 
and Management 
as at December 31, 2008 

•  Shareholding of the Board of Directors and Management 
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The director remuneration policy has been clearly and transparently established by the Board of 
Directors, with the Nomination and Compensation Committee considering the policy for such directors and 
top management as President and Vice President. The final policy will then be proposed to the Board of 
Directors for consideration before presenting to the shareholders meeting for consideration and approval.

1. The Remuneration of Directors Policy and Payment Criteria

The remunerations of directors determined by the Board of Directors comprise 

 • yearly director bonus
 • monthly paid remuneration
 • remuneration paid as meeting

Allowance with regard to the tasks, responsibilities and performance of directors being beneficial 
to the Company, compared to other companies of comparable size and nature of business. Directors will 
receive remuneration commensurate with more duties and responsibilities assigned.

2. The Remuneration of Management Policy and Payment Criteria

The Nomination and Compensation Committee will consider and review the President’s remuneration 
and propose it to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval. Such remuneration will be  
appropriately fixed based on the remuneration structure of the Company and compared to

 • surveyed information about remuneration payment by recognized institutes, organizations and entities 
 • the growth rate of the gross domestic product, inflation rate and net profits 5 years backward, 

including his performance and consistency with the duties and responsibilities assigned.

The President will consider the suitability of determining remunerations and adjusting yearly wages 
of the Vice President, with consideration of his performance and Company results of operations and his 
attainment to the pre-defined goals.

Remuneration of Board of Directors included meeting allowance  
and attendant fee are as following;

Name

Meeting Allowance (Baht)

Bonus of 
2007 TotalBoard

Executive 
Board

Audit & CG 
Committee

Nomination & 
Compensation 
CommitteeSalary Meeting  

Allowance

1. Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um1 166,800 243,000 - - - - 409,800.00

2. Mr. Yongyuth Kitaphanich 150,000 206,250 360,000 - - 330,396.45 1,046,646.45

3. Mr. Panja Senadisai 120,000 165,000 - 180,000 45,000 264,317.16 774,317.16

4. Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng 120,000 165,000 - 120,000 67,500 264,317.16 736,817.16

Remunerations of the Board of Directors 
and Management

Remunerations of the Board of Directors and Management  •
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Name

Meeting Allowance (Baht)

Bonus of 
2007 TotalBoard

Executive 
Board

Audit & CG 
Committee

Nomination & 
Compensation 
CommitteeSalary Meeting  

Allowance

5. Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan2 120,000 165,000 360,000 30,000 37,500 88,105.72 800,605.72

6. Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol3 80,000 135,000 - 90,000 - - 305,000.00

7. Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich 120,000 165,000 - - - 264,317.16 549,317.16

8. Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich 120,000 165,000 - - - 264,317.16 549,317.16

9. Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich 120,000 165,000 - - - 264,317.16 549,317.16

10. Mr. Surasak Khaoroptham 120,000 150,000 360,000 - 60,000 264,317.16 954,317.16

Note:
1 Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um is an independent director and chairman from March 24, 2008
2 Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan had resigned from member of the audit committee and member of the nomination and compensation committee to be a chairman of the executive board  

from May 1, 2008
3 Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol is an independent director from April 24, 2008 and was appointed as a member of the audit committee from May 1, 2008
4 The Board of Directors who had resigned during the year 2007 but they had received bonus in the year 2008 are Mr. Chira Panupong; 363,436.10 Baht  

and Mr. Voranit Charumas; 132,158.58 Baht

Remuneration in cash for the Company’s executives  
in the form of salary and bonus

Units :Baht Number of 
executives 2008 Number of 

executives 2007

Salary 10 22,493,956.67 8 21,771,480.00

Bonus 9 7,754,199.48 8   7,704,226.00

Total     30,248,156.15      29,475,706.00

Note:
 - Year 2008 consists of 10 managements are Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich, Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich, Mr. Yoshitaka Obayashi, Mr. Chamnan Thamcharoen 

(resigned during 2008), Mr. Worapote Chutchaikulsiri, Mr. Wasant Chawajaroenpan, Mr. Wichai Srimavon, Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich, Mrs. Jiraporn 
Srisomwong and Mr. Phakorn Thongcharoen               

- Year 2007 consists of 8 managements are Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich, Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich, Mr. Yoshitaka Obayashi, Mr. Chamnan Thamcharoen,  
Mr. Worapote Chutchaikulsiri, Mr. Wasant Chawajaroenpan, Mr. Wichai Srimavon and Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich

Other remunerations

Contributions to the Provident Fund

In 2008, the Company paid the following contributions to the Company’s executives  

Units : Baht Person 2008 Person 2007

Provident Fund 8 520,953 7 539,132.40

Note:
- Year 2008 consists of 8 managements are Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich, Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich, Mr. Chamnan Thamcharoen (resigned during 2008),  

Mr. Worapote Chutchaikulsiri, Mr. Wasant Chawajaroenpan, Mr. Wichai Srimavon, Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich and Mrs. Jiraporn Srisomwong
- Year 2007 consists of 7 managements are Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich, Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich, Mr. Chamnan Thamcharoen,  

Mr. Worapote Chutchaikulsiri, Mr. Wasant Chawajaroenpan, Mr. Wichai Srimavon and Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich

•  Shareholding of the Board of Directors and Management 
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In order for the shareholders to have more participation in 

corporate governance, the Corporate Governance Policy and 

Business Ethics and Working Practice Handbooks were made 

available on August 14, 2008 and posted on Company website 

www.satpcl.co.th in the Corporate Governance section for 

shareholders, investors and interested individuals to download. 

The two handbooks will also be disseminated to directors, 

management and staff as practice guides. 

In order to be consistent with the best practice in respect 

of the corporate governance policy, the structure, duties and 

responsibilities of the Governance Working Group was defined 

by the Audit and Governance Committee on October 9, 2008 

for the purpose of promoting and disseminating the corporate 

governance policy, business ethics and working practice to 

motivate participation by staff at every level resulting in practical 

outcomes, studying, improving, evaluating, reviewing and 

suggesting criteria which are updated and legally compliant, 

including ensuring the evaluation of compliance with policy 

and having of report of results of operations to the Audit and 

Governance Committee for at least 4 times a year. 

According to the Corporate Governance Report of 

Thai Listed Companies 2008 provided by the Thai Institute of 

Directors Association, it indicates that the Company earned 

scores of 92 points from the total 100 points, becoming 1 of 

the 22 companies ranked at the “Excellent” level of the 448 

listed companies surveyed.

Throughout 2008, the Company observed the principle 

of corporate governance covering 5 categories as follows:

Rights of Shareholders

In 2008, in addition to shareholder basic rights such as the rights buy, sell and transfer securities, 

several actions have been taken so as to promote right exercise by shareholders as follows:

 • The shareholders, through the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s news channel, have been given an 

opportunity to send in their questions in relation to the agendas of the 2008 General Meeting of 

Shareholders prior to the date of meeting during March 24 - April 10, 2008, with all associated 

criteria and procedures posted on www.satpcl.co.th in the Investor Relations section under 

“Shareholders Meeting”.

 • With regard to the importance and rights of the shareholders, the Company has complied with the 

criteria required by laws and convened the 2008 General Meeting of Shareholders on April 24, 2008 

attended by all 9 directors, including the additionally appointed one, Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol, who 

also joined the meeting for observation shareholder-question answering purposes. Furthermore, 

the meeting was joined by Company top management, Ernst & Young’s auditor representative, 

and legal advisor from Siam City Law Office.

 • The notice of meeting in both Thai an English versions and criteria concerning shareholders’ given 

opportunity to send in questions in relation to the meeting agendas to the Board of directors in 

advance of the meeting were posted on www.satpcl.co.th in the Investor Relations section under 

Shareholders Meeting for the shareholders to study the information 30 days before the date of 

meeting (posted on March 24, 2008).

 • The notices of meeting were delivered through Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd, the share 

registrar of the Company, to the shareholders 10 days prior to the date of meeting.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance  •
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 • Without a prior notice to the shareholders, neither 

meeting agendas nor key information for the 2008 

General Meeting of Shareholders were changed. The 

shareholders were also entitled to express their opinions 

and pose questions at the meeting before any resolutions 

were made, details of which were recorded in the Minutes 

of 2008 General Meeting of Shareholders.

 • In the notice of shareholders meeting, the shareholders 

were provided with the criteria and procedures 

concerning how to attend the meeting and individual 

agenda information.

 • With the Board of Directors’ directive, the shareholders 

would be provided with minutes of meeting within 14 

days on Company website in order for their comments 

and verifications without required to wait until next 

meeting.

 • In 2008, the Company paid dividends based on the 

Company’s business performance of year 2007 at the 

rate of Baht 0.70 per share, representing 35.52 percent 

of net profit, which was consistent with the dividend 

payment policy set by the Company (at not less than 

30 percent of net profit after tax).

Equitable Treatment to Shareholders

It is the Board of Directors’ policy to provide absolutely equitable treatment to the shareholders, 

whether they are major, minor, institutional or foreign investors. 

In 2008, evaluated by the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission, Thai Investors Association, 

and Thai Listed Companies Association regarding its quality of arranging an annual general meeting of 

shareholders, the Company was ranked “Very Excellent” with the aggregate scores of 107.5 points from 

the total scores of 110 points (total scores of 100 points plus additional 10 bonus points). It achieved the 

highest scores possible in all three categories - before the date of meeting, on the date of meeting, and 

after the date of meeting. More actions have been taken, such as:

 • In the 2008 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholders were given an opportunity 

to propose matters as meeting agendas and nominate individuals consideration of directorship 

appointment in advance during November - December 2008. Such notification was made through 

the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s news channel and Company website, www.satpcl.co.th, in the 

Investor Relations section under Shareholders Meeting.

 • Proxy Form B was attached to the notice of meeting and posted on Company website for 

downloading, empowering the shareholders to personally steer the direction of voting for each 

meeting agenda and for those shareholders who might be prevented to attend the meeting 

personally to grant other persons or the independent director to attend the meeting and vote on 

their behalf. At the 2008 General Meeting of Shareholders, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, 

the independent director nominated by the Company, was granted by 23 shareholders to be their 

proxy in voting on their behalf.

 •  A Computer system was used in registration and counting the shareholders’ votes. In addition, 

ballot papers were used in voting for speediness and facilitation to the shareholders.

 •  The Board of Directors prohibited the use of opportunity or information acquired through being 

a director, management or employee for personal benefit or other businesses competing or 

in connection with the Company, including the use of insider information for trading Company 

securities or giving it to others for personal gain. As a result, directors and top management are 

strictly required to have a report of initial securities holding and report of changed securities 

holding in accordance with Section 59 of the Securities and Stock Exchange B.E. 2551 (2008)
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Roles of Stakeholders

The Company business is operated with regard to the rights of and fairness to every stakeholder 

party. The Code of Business Ethics and Working Practices is used as a guide for directors, management 

and employees to follow, covering such major practices as responsibility toward shareholders, conflicts of 

interests and confidentiality, responsibility toward Company assets, treatment to stakeholders, monitoring 

and ensuring compliance with the Code of Business Ethics, and receiving complaints, as follows:

 • Management and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries are treated fairly in terms of 

remuneration and appropriate, lawful welfares, with such other fringe benefit as bonus given 

based on individual achievements.

 • Debtors are treated in accordance with business terms and conditions. Loan terms and conditions 

agreed upon with commercial banks and/or financial institutions have been adhered to. 

 • Services are provided attentively and responsibly to customers, including keeping customer secrets.

 • Competitors are treated under a fair and honest competition framework.

 • Environment, communities and society are well responsible for.

 • Public sector and relevant entities are given supports and good co-operation regularly. 

 • A complaining channel is provided through the Company secretary for complaints relating to 

governance and business ethics.

 • With a policy to promote co-operation between the Company and its stakeholders so as to enhance 

the Company’s results of operations, the Board of Directors establishes a protective mechanism 

enabling whistleblowers to report any misconduct, accuracy of the report of financial statements, 

deficient or unethical internal control system through emails to the independent and audit directors 

of the Company directly, details of which as per indicated in the Company website, under Investor 

Relations, Corporate News section. There was no complaint in 2008.

 • With the protective measure for an employee who gives a government agency  information about 

illegal actions or violation of the Securities and Stock Exchange Act, s/he will be secured and not 

be subjected unfairly by the company to position, work nature, or workplace change, suspension, 

threatening or termination as a result of his/her reporting.

Disclosure and Transparency

 • The Company requires that disclosure of financial 

and other crucial information is made with accuracy, 

completeness, timeliness and transparency in 

accordance with the rules prescribed by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission (SEC). In 2008, no order 

from the SEC regarding amendment of the financial 

statements or related documents was received. 

Such crucial information of the Company as financial 

statements, corporate governance and business 

ethics policies, corporate social responsibility, analyst 

consensus, annual reports,  Annual Information Filing 

(Form 56-1), shareholders meetings, list of major  

 

 

 

shareholders, list of Board of Directors, company news 

publicized through the Exchange and auto industry 

news are posted on Company website for each easy 

access by shareholders, investors and all parties of 

stakeholders.

 • Names of Company directors and sub-committees,  

including their roles, duties, terms of offices, are contained 

in management structure section. Backgrounds of 

individual directors are put in the board of directors& 

management section

Corporate Governance  •



Somboon Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd.42

 • Remuneration for Directors and Executives

Director remunerations are considered based on a 

comparison with the level currently adopted in the 

same industry, results of operations of the Company, 

duties and responsibilities of directors. Director 

remunerations are determined and fixed by the 

shareholders meeting, whilst executive remunerations 

are in compliance with the Board-defined principle and 

policy, which are linked with the results of operations 

of the Company and individual executive performance. 

Details of remunerations in 2008 paid to directors and 

executives can be found in remuneration section

 • Mr. Thanakit Permpoonkantisuk has been appointed 

by the Board to be the Company and Board secretary 

since December 15, 2006 to undertake Board and 

shareholders meetings, preparation of meeting agendas, 

notice of meetings, minutes of meetings and meeting 

documents, including keeping such relevant documents 

of directors and executives as director registry, report 

of conflicts of interests, and providing the Board of  

Directors with suggestions in legal matters and 

regulations to ensure its compliance with the rules, 

ordinances, regulations prescribed by the Office of 

Securities and Exchange Commission, Stock Exchange, 

and applicable laws.

 • Sub-committees’ operations in prior year can be 

referenced to other information sources as follows:

 - Executive Board
The Executive Board comprises 4 directors, with an independent director having chairmanship 

for an office term of 3 years each as prescribed for a Company director. Details of the Executive 

Board, its roles and duties are described in the management structure section.

Meetings of the Executive Board 

In 2008, 16 executive board meeting were held to consider, approve and screen matters 

designated by the Board of Directors, details of attending executive board at such meetings are 

as follows:

Director Name Attendance Remark

Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan 8/16 Appointed Chairman of the Executive Board  
since May 1, 2008

Mr. Yongyuth Kitaphanich 15/16 Took 1 leave.

Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich 16/16

Mr. Surasak Khaoroptham 15/16 Took 1 leave.

 - Audit& Corporate Governance Committee
- Report of Audit& Corporate Governance Committee in the Annual Report 2008

 - Nomination and Compensation Committee
-  Report of Nomination and Compensation Committee in the Annual Report 2008
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 • Quality of Financial Report

Details as per the Report of Board Responsibility Toward Financial Report in Annual Report 

2008 section.

 • Investor Relations

Having put heavy emphasis on investor relations, Company top management also participated 

in a regular meeting with and giving information to shareholders, investors, analysts and the press, 

and set up an Investor Relations Department for effective communication between the Company 

and shareholders, investors, analysts, the press and the public at any time which would result in 

receipt by shareholders and investors of information reflecting the actual value of the Company on 

a timely manner, enabling their effective evaluation of investing in the Company. The Company put 

more emphasis on financial information report, including disclosure with accuracy, completeness, 

regularity, timeliness, transparency and comprehensiveness, as well as such crucial information as 

having an effect over securities prices of the Company.

Information was disseminated to investors and stakeholders through all channels available, 

including communication channels, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, site visits by investors and 

analysts, company visits for discussion with Company management, visits by correspondents from 

both Thai and foreign news agencies for interviews, regular earning releases to the public, meetings 

with analysts to keep up with the results of operations of 

the Company and industrial trends on a quarterly basis, 

IR Connect information query channel for investors 

through telephone and email, and Company   website, 

on which IR information are updated regularly, financial 

report, annual report, Form 56-1, presentations, analyst 

consensus, and others.

During 2008, several activities were held to present 

information both directly and indirectly as follows:

1. Two road shows domestically and two  

internationally.

2. Three analyst meetings.

3. Eighteen site or company visits.

4. Four information presentations in the 

Opportunity Day held by the Thai Exchange. 

5. Four earning releases.

6. Press releases when the Company had 

important investment or business activities.

7. Regular information giving and question 

answering to investor and mass media 

through emails at ir@somboon.co.th.

Board Responsibilities

 • The Board of Directors requires that the Chairman 

and the President are not the same person and have 

distinctively separated roles, powers and duties, as 

detailed in page 25-26
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 • Mr. Panja Senadisai was appointed by the Board to hold the office of Chairman of the Audit 

Committee because he was a financially knowledgeable independent director. All the five 

independent directors have qualifications required by the Company as detailed in page 26.

 • To fit the size of the Company business, the Board of Directors consists of 10 knowledgeable and 

competent directors, three of which are executive directors and the other seven are not. One of 

them is a representative director and five of them are independent directors with 3-year office 

term each and infinite terms of directorship.

 • All the ten directors of the Company may not hold directorships for more than 5 listed companies 

in compliance with the principle of corporate governance, details of directorships holding in listed 

companies as per the board of directors and management section.

 • In the event of directorship vacancy, all Board members can nominate name(s) to the Nomination 

and Compensation Committee for it to collect and propose to the Board of Directors for 

consideration and approved appointment. In 2008, all members nominated one person, Mr. Sansern 

Wongcha-um, to fill the vacancy and one person, Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol, was appointed director.

 • The Board of Directors joined the management team in determining vision, mission, strategies, 

goals, business plans, and budgets of the Company by holding a workshop seminar between 

the Board and top management during September 25 - 27, 2008 at Grand Hyatt Erawan Hotel, 

Bangkok.

 • The Board of Directors joined the management team 

in considering and improving strategic plans, business 

plans and projects contained in the annual business 

plan approved by the Board, and the results of financial 

operations not in conformity with the business plan and 

budgets, through monitoring and overseeing by the 

Executive Board. In 2008, the Board of Directors also 

joined the management team in establishing economic 

crisis impact alleviating measures.

 • The Board of Directors caused to provided, an 

internal control system covering finance, operation, 

compliance with applicable laws, regulations and 

ordinances, including appropriate and adequate risk 

management and an appropriately effective check 

and balance mechanism for the protection and 

preservation of assets. An Internal Audit Department, 

which is an independent unit reporting directly to the 

Audit Committee, was made available to undertake the 

audit of every unit’s performance. The internal control 

system was, upon evaluated by the Audit Committee 

on February 19, 2008, in the Committee’s opinion 

adequately available. 

 • The Board ensures the adequacy of, and regularly 

monitors risk management by forming a Risk 

Management Committee to consider and appropriately 

manage risks in all areas and by assigning the 

Committee to monitor, oversee and analyze the risk 

management of individual operational level units 

through Risk Champion, and report the results of risk 

management as planned to the President and the 

Executive Board every quarter.

 • Sub-committees

 • The Board of Directors has formed sub-committees, 

such as Executive Board, Audit and Corporate  

Governance Committee, Nomination and Compensation 

Committee, with their powers and duties distinctively 

defined (details of which as indicated in management 

structure section.
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 • Board Meetings

Board meetings are pre-scheduled for the whole 

year and will be held for more than 6 times in each 

year, including special ones as necessary. At each 

meeting, agendas for acknowledgement and for 

consideration are clearly provided, with complete 

and adequate meeting documents delivered to 

Board members at least 7 days in advance for them 

to have enough time to go through the materials 

before attending the meeting. At the meeting, every 

director is able to openly discuss and express 

opinions, with the Chairman compiling all opinions 

and conclusions drawn from the meeting, which 

will be recorded in writing by the Board secretary. 

Following adoption by the meeting, the minutes of 

meeting will be filed in the cabinet on second floor 

of Building 11 at the head office for inspection by 

directors and people concerned.

The Company has a policy to give non-executive 

directors an opportunity to have a meeting among 

them so as to discuss about managerial problems 

in their interest not joined by management for at 

least once a year and inform the President of the 

results of meeting. In 2008, a meeting was held on 

December 11, 2008 at which all directors express 

their opinions toward management operation 

and admired the management for its satisfactory 

creation of corporate growth. This matter was 

proposed by the Chairman to the Board of Directors 

for concurrence. The results of discussion have 

been already informed to the President. 

In 2008, 11 Board meetings were held, 16 meetings of Executive Board were held, 8 meetings of Audit 

and Corporate Governance Committee were held, and 4 meetings of Nomination and Compensation Committee 

were held. Details of attendance by individual directors are as follows:

Name Position

Attended (Times)

Board of 
Directors

Executive 
Board

Audit& CG 
Committee

Nomination & 
Compensation 
Committee

Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um
Independent director/ 
Chairman

9/11 - - -

Mr. Yongyuth Kitaphanich
Vice Chairman/ 
Executive Board

11/11 15/16 - -

Mr. Panja Senadisai

Independent director/ 
Chairman of the Audit& 
CG Committee/ Mem-
ber of the Nomination& 
Compensation Com-
mittee

11/11 - 8/8 3/4

Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng

Independent director/
Member of the Audit & 
CG Committee/Chair-
man of the Nomination 
& Compensation Com-
mittee

11/11 - 8/8 4/4

Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan
Independent director/ 
Chairman of the 
Executive Board

11/11 8/16 2/8 2/4
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Name Position

Attended (Times)

Board of 
Directors

Executive 
Board

Audit& CG 
Committee

Nomination & 
Compensation 
Committee

Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol Independent director/ 
Member of the Audit& 
CG Committee

9/11 - 6/8 -

Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich Director/ Executive 
Board

11/11 16/16 - -

Mr. Yongkiat Kitaphanich Director 11/11 - - -

Ms. Napatsorn Kitaphanich Director 11/11 - - -

Mr. Surasak Khaoroptham Director/ Executive 
Board/ Member of the 
Nomination& Compen-
sation Committee

10/11 15/16 - 4/4

Note:
- The Nomination& Compensation Committee is combining between the compensation committee and the nomination and corporate governance 

committee and the corporate governance committee combined to the audit committee, effective on May 1, 2008
- Mr.Sansern Wongcha-um held a position of independent and chairman of the Board from March 24, 2008 
- Mr. Panja Senadisai held a position of member of the compensation committee until April 30, 2008 and held a position of member of the nomination and 

compensation committee from May 1, 2008
- Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol held a position of independent director from April 24, 2008 and appointed to be member of the Audit& CG Committee replacing 

Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan from May 1, 2008
- Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan
 · Held a position of member of the Audit Committee from September 1, 2007 to April 30, 2008
 · Held a position of chairman of the compensation committee from September 12, 2007 to April 30, 2008 
 · Held a position of member of the nomination and compensation and CG from November 14, 2007 to April 30, 2008
 · Appointed to be chairman of the executive board from May 1, 2008

 • Self-Assessment

According to the Board of Directors’ self-Assessment, 

it was determined that relationship enhancing activities 

between directors and management should be held. 

In 2008, several activities were held and joined by 

directors and top management, such as site visits to 

group companies and a talk held by the automotive 

parts industrial group to enhance knowledge about 

Securities and Stock Exchange Act (revised version), 

including a seminar among the economic crisis and its 

impact to the automotive parts industry on November 

2008.

 • New Director Orientation

In 2008, Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um and Mr. Paitoon 

Taveebhol, the new directors, were invited by the man-

agement to join its meeting, with the President giving 

a brief presentation of the nature of businesses and 

business operation guidelines of the Company and its 

subsidiaries. In addition, the two new directors paid 

visits to the head office plant in Samutprakarn and 

Rayong plant in order to gain more understanding 

in the Company’s business operations. They are 

knowledgeable and capable and persons passing 

director roles and duties training, as detailed in page 

the board and management section.

 • Directors, executives and secretary are encouraged 

by the Company to take training courses and seminars 

organized by the Thai Institute of Directors Association, 

Stock Exchange of Thailand, Office of Securities and 

Exchange Commission, or independent organizations 

in order to enhance their knowledge and improve their 

effective performance of duties. 
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Use of Inside Information

It is the Company’s policy to prohibit directors, executives 

and staff to use acquired inside information for personal or 

others’ gain as follows:

1. Directors and executives are made aware of the 

inside information use rule, obligation to report 

the trading of securities of the Company and its 

subsidiaries by them, their spouses and children of 

an illegal age, including the penal measures pursuant 

to the Securities and Stock Exchange Act B.E. 2551 

(2008), and amendment thereof, and to the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand’s requirements.

2. Directors and executives undertakes to produce and 

submit to the Securities and Exchange Commission 

their reports of holding securities of the Company 

and its subsidiaries by them and their spouses and 

children at an illegal age, as follows:

 - Report of Initial Securities Holding (Form 59-1) 

within 30 days from the date public offering is 

closed or the date of appointment as a director 

or executive.

 - Report of Changed Securities Holding (Form 59-2) 

resulting from acquisition, disposition, transfer or 

being transferred for securities within 3 days from 

the date of the same submitted to the Company 

in the same day as submitting it to the Office of 

Securities and Exchange Commission.

3. Directors and the first 4 executives under the President undertake to furnish reports of conflicts 

of interest of them and pertinent individuals to the Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the 

Audit& Corporate governance Committee in accordance with the Securities and Stock Exchange 

Act B.E. 2551 (2008). Furthermore, the Board of Directors has a policy for managerial staff, 

general manager and department managers to furnish to the Audit& Corporate Governance 

Committee on a quarterly basis reports of conflicts of interests of them and pertinent individuals 

in order for transparent, fair and equitable operation. 

4. It is hereby announced that directors, executive and staff who have acquired inside information 

with a potentially significant effect to the change of securities trading price are required to suspend 

their Company securities trading for a period of one month before the Company’s results of 

operations are announced (the schedule for the announcement of the results of operations is 

45 days from end of a quarter and 60 days from end of an accounting period) or when such 

inside information are due to be publicly disclosed.

Any directors or executives violating the Company’s policy resulting in derogation or damage to the 

Company are subject to its penal measures and legal action taken by coordinated, relevant regulatory 

authorities.
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The Board meeting No. 2/2009 held on February 25, 2009 was joined by the Audit Committee to give 

comments about the adequacy and suitability of the internal control system with reference to the “Internal 

Control System Adequacy Assessment Form” of the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee considered and reviewed the audit report and gave suggestions about the 

internal control, focusing on making the operating audit continuously effective and efficient. Parts of the 

results of audit which are subject matters, including related-party transactions, with potential conflicts of 

interests, should be monitored and corrected, in order to be reasonable fact items of a generally normal 

business and to accord the Company the most benefits according its policies. On the assets side, good 

protection system was in place. Fraudulent transactions or misuse of Company assets were not discovered. 

Review results were in compliance with the defined procedures and consistent with governmentally statutory 

provisions and the corporate governance policy. According to a discussion with the auditor regarding 

assessment of the internal control, it conforms to the accounting standard and is adequate without any 

significant deficiencies, covering the whole organization and risk management environment, management 

operation, information technology and data communication. The internal control has been monitored and 

assessed continuously, with subject matters summarized below:

Internal Control

Organization and Environment

The Company’s business operation goals were clearly, 

reasonably and measurably defined with indicators in 3 

levels. Achievement evaluation was improved in the part of 

employee behavioral evaluation based on corporate culture 

consistently with corporate behaviors to benefit better operating 

performance development, with vision, strategies and budget 

planning in place consistent operations which fulfils the goals set.

Structure of command was defined based on function 

lines which are consistent with the business operation strate-

gies and corporate governance, with the Internal Audit Depart-

ment being an independent unit reporting directly to the Audit 

Committee.

Achievement evaluation was improved in the part of 

employee competency and behavioral evaluation based 

on corporate culture consistently with corporate behaviors 

to benefit better operating performance development. The 

corporate governance policy and business ethics were 

promoted by the Company to be clear and transparent. Policies 

and operating plans were established with regard to fairness 

toward employees, customers, partners, and responsibility  

 

 

 

toward the shareholders, society and environment. The 

Corporate Governance Policy and Business Ethics and  

Working Practice Handbooks and corporate social  

responsibility were made available emphasizing on an  

equitable preservation of interests of investors and all  

stakeholder parties. Disclosure with accuracy, completeness, 

transparency and timeliness, effective and adequate internal 

control system, and standard and effective risk management 

system were announced for use in quarter 3/2008, with  

employees trained to have accountability toward being an 

organization with governance.

The Company is committed to developing i ts  

manufacturing processes for standard products which are 

internationally recognized and put heavy emphasis on  

environmental preservation. ISO/TS 16949 and ISO 14001 

certified, the Company has an independent unit separated from 

its production line and undertaking inspection and monitoring 

for compliance with requirements. 
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For financial transactions, purchasing and hiring, the 

Company put in place a “Power of Implementation” and 

“Purchasing/Hiring Control” Handbooks describing criteria 

conditions and authority to approve payments and execute 

purchase/hiring contracts on a prudent fashion in order to 

prevent fraudulently financial transactions.

Risk Management

As risk management policy is important, a Risk  

Management Committee was appointed by the Company 

consisting of directors and top management who undertake 

the assessment of external risk factors including economic 

conditions, state policies, and varying prices of raw materials 

and such internal factors as having an impact over the  

Company’s goals and business operation. Persons responsible 

for risks in units were fixed. Risk management was declared to 

be the responsibility of all executives. Risk management was 

planned and risk management measures were established. 

Risk factors with possible impact to the Company’s goals and 

business operation were assessed. Risk management by units 

within the organization was monitored. Reports by the Risk 

Management Committee have been submitted to the Board 

of Director on a continual basis. Adequacy and suitability of 

the risk management have been closely inspected by the Audit 

Committee. The Company will provide a risk management plan 

focusing mainly on being consistent with its strategic plans, and 

equip staff at every level with more knowledge, understanding 

and awareness toward risk management.

In 2008, the company has the risk management 

assessment done by an independent consulting company. 

The result is that we have clear frame of risk management 

system. We have written policies which enforce throughout  

the organization. The roles of the management and employees 

are specified. The follow up is done continuously. We also 

have the central unit to push the implementation of the risk 

management.

Management Performance Control

The Board of Directors formed 3 sub-committees consisting of the Executive Board, Audit and 

Corporate Governance Committee, Nomination and Compensation Committee, all performing under the 

scope of powers and duties assigned. 

1. Scope of powers and duties and approvable budget limits of management in all departments and 

in all levels have been clearly defined in writing, with positions empowered to approval budgets, 

direct, incur debts, and settle debts specified in writing, including the Board of Directors (by the 

opinion of the Board of Directors), and suitability review at least once a year.

2. Sixteen systems of operations and approval power and duties have been established.

3. Laws or applicable regulations were surveyed at a total of 143 issues and a Law Compliance 

Control Handbook was made.

In addition, the Audit Committee considering, reviews and approves the annual audit plan so as to 

cover every high-risk performance process and expectations of Company-related individuals. As a result, 

the Company is confident that units have an internal control adequately in their performance to respond 

to risks in all areas including finance, performance, and compliance with laws, regulations, ordinance and 

rules. Also, main issues and problems discovered through the audits of internal and external auditors 

are addressed, closely monitored, and reported to the management and managerial person of the units 

involved for corrective actions and establishing protective measures to prevent reoccurrences.
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In the event of transaction made with a corporate or an individual related to the Company possibly 

leading to a conflict of interest between the Company and that corporate or individual, such transaction 

must go through the same approval process based on Company ordinances as a typical transaction does. 

The transaction-related persons undertake to consider whether the transaction is reasonable, normal and 

lawful with regard to the maximum benefits of the Company and its shareholders as if it was made with 

an outside individual.

Information System and Data Communication

To support its decision making, the Board of Directors is provided with important information in the 

form of an analytic report containing principle and reason comparison and supporting documents delivered 

7 days in advance. The Company secretary contributes to giving advices about regulations and rules of 

Securities Exchange Act, B.E. 2551, and Public Company Limited Act, B.E. 2535 that the Board needs to 

know, overseeing Board activities, coordinating to ensure compliance with Board resolutions, and acting 

as a center of making and filing documentation, such as director registry, notices of Board meetings, 

minutes of Board meetings, notices and minutes of shareholders meetings for 5 years in a systematic 

way. In addition, supporting documents for accounting records and accounts are fully kept by categories 

for transparency and as operational information.

.

The Audit Committee, auditors, Internal Audit Department 

and concern people jointly considered the making of Company 

financial statements every quarter to ensure that the generally 

accepted accounting standard had been used and fits the nature 

of Company businesses, including appropriate disclosure.

During 2008 - 2009, the information system was 

developed by way of implementing an Enterprise Resource 

Planning (ERP) system throughout the organization so as to 

advance the Company’s information technology potential in 

response to business demands.

Monitoring System

With 11 Board meetings held in 2008, the results of 

performance were monitored as to whether it met the goals 

set. What also in place is a hierarchical performance monitoring 

system that monitors the Board of Directors, Executive Board, 

and Management in order to follow up the goals and supervise 

implementations based upon strategic plans, business plans 

and projects contained in the annual business plan approved by 

the Board of Directors regularly on a monthly basis and to solve 

potentially arising problems and adjust the operational plan in 

line with the changing situations. If the results of implementation 

deviate from the goals set, the persons in charge are required 

to provide a performance review report and analyze the causes 

and join the consideration to approve a problem solving plan, 

with subsequent performance reported on a continual basis.

In 2008, there were 8 Audit& CG Committee meetings 

held. The Company caused to be conducted, a regular check 

of compliance with the internal control by the responsible 

persons of each department, with the Internal Audit Department 

independently performing audits in order to report any material 

deficiencies discovered to the Audit Committee and Board of 

Directors for its consideration and order of corrective actions 

within a reasonable period, including reporting of corrective 

actions taken and potentially material incidents or doubts to 

the Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

The Company secretary is assigned to furnish a report 

of compliance with corporate governance policy and business 

ethics to the Audit Committee for at least 4 times a year.
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The Company and its subsidiaries related transactions with person(s) who would have been involved in dispute during the 

year 2007 and 2008 were as follows;

Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Co., Ltd. (SBM)

Description of important items

Total  
amount remaining

(Million Baht) Conditions of price/ Necessity

2007 2008

List of ordinary transactions
1. SAT sold scraps material to SBM 4.28 3.71 Market price/ to increase income to SAT by selling 

scraps material which was normal loss from the 
production

2. SAT was the long-term loan lender to SBM 478.06 333.39 According to loan agreement/ as a result from structure 
adjustment of the group of Company (See details in 
the notes for financial statement)

3. SAT was the short-term loan lender of SBM - 30.00 According to loan agreement

4. SAT paid of goods and services to SBM 0.12 - Cost plus additional profit of 15-30% on average  

5. SAT received interest of loan from SBM 29.68 23.05 Charged interest at the fixed rate, MLR- fixed rate a 
year and MMR a year

6. SAT paid utilities fee for SBM 0.71 1.20 Price was close to the Cost/ SAT used utilities of SBM 

7. SAT received utilities payment from SBM 14.46 17.07 Price was close to the Cost/ SBM used utilities of SAT 

8. SAT received management fee from SBM 58.85 66.76 Price was close to the Cost/ Services for SBM

Remark: Item 1 – 8 are the items indicated in the notes for financial statement.

Bangkok Spring Industrial Co., Ltd. (BSK)

Description of important items

Total  
amount remaining

(Million Baht) Conditions of price/ Necessity

2007 2008

List of ordinary transactions

1. SAT bought Jig Fixture from BSK 4.94 7.02 Cost plus additional profit of 15-30% on average 
(Year 2007: Cost plus additional profit of 15-25% 
on average)/ SAT needed to utilize Jig Fixture in 
production process continuously and BSK must to 
have capability to support SAT’s demand 

2. SAT was the loan lender to BSK 383.00 303.00 According to loan agreement/ as a result of structural 
adjustment of the group of companies (See details in 
the notes for financial statement)

3. SAT received interest of loan from BSK 24.75 20.48 Charged interest at the fixed rate, MLR- fixed rate a 
year and MMR a year 

4. SAT paid utilities fee for BSK 2.45 2.21 Price was close to the Cost/ SAT used utilities of BSK

5. SAT received utilities payment from BSK 1.56 2.62 Price was close to the Cost/ BSK used utilities of SAT

6. SAT received management  from BSK 41.04 49.32 Price was close to the Cost / Services for BSK

Remark: Item 1 – 6 are the items indicated in the notes for financial statement.

Related Transaction

Related Transaction  •
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International Casting Products Co., Ltd. (ICP)

The Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders’ meeting on July 24, 2007 had a resolution to purchased 15 million ordinary shares 

of International Casting Products Co., Ltd. at the rate of Baht 11 per share and completed of transfer all shares on July 25, 2007.

Description of important items

Total
amount remaining

(Million Baht) Conditions of price/ Necessity

2007 2008

List of ordinary transactions

1. SAT sold scraps material to ICP 1.70 3.37 Market price/ to increase income to SAT by selling 
scraps material which was normal loss from the 
production

2. SAT was the short-term loan lender of ICP - 40.00 According to loan agreement

3. SAT received interest of loan from ICP - 1.34 Charged interest at the rate of MMR a year

4. SAT received utilities payment from ICP - 0.32 Price was close to the Cost/ ICP used utilities of SAT

Non - Recurring Items
5. SAT took over ICP 161.03 - Agreement price

Remark: Item 1 – 2 are the items indicated in the notes for financial statement.

Kitaphanich Group is the directors, executives and shareholders of the Company

Description of important items

Total  
amount remaining
(Million Baht) Conditions of price/ Necessity

2007 2008
List of ordinary transactions

1. BSK  got income from selling Leaf Spring 
to Yong Kee (1995) Co., Ltd.

129.79 133.94 Pricing of goods sold to Yong Kee (1995) Co., Ltd. was 
set up price plus primary profit considered by the Audit 
Committee as a transaction item in performing ordinary 
business of the Company of which is pricing condition was 
the same as for general persons/ It was an expansion of 
customer base of the group of company as the mentioned 
company is the leader of business operation on the market 
of REM

2. SAT  got income from selling Axle Shaft to 
Yong Kee (1995) Co., Ltd.

8.32 6.62 Sold at the market price in comparison with other 
companies/ the characteristic of selling was from time to 
time to mentioned company which is the leader of business 
operation on the market of REM

3. ICP purchased sand from TSC - 1.7 Sold at the market price in comparison with other 
companies/ the characteristic of selling was from time to 
time to mentioned company which is the leader of business 
operation on the market of REM

•  Related Transaction
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Report of the Nomination and 
Compensation Committee

On April 24, 2008, the Board of Directors resolved to have the structure of committees and 

sub-committees changed in order for even more effectiveness of its performing duties, which includes 

combining the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and the Compensation Committee to 

form the Nomination and Compensation Committee.

Two-thirds of the Nomination and Compensation Committee are independent directors, with 

its chairman being an independent director too. The Committee consists of Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng,  

Mr. Panja Senadisai, and Mr. Surasak Khaoroptham, staying in office form a term of 3 years, to be effective 

on May 1, 2008.

During 2008, the were 4 meeting held by the Nomination and Compensation Committee and joined by 

all the three directors for consideration of important issues designated by the Board of Directors as follows:

The Nomination and Compensation Committee considers 

and specifies the criteria for nominating and selecting suitable 

persons to offices and the criteria for paying remunerations to 

directors and executives.

1. Specified criteria for nominating and selecting an  

appropriate person replace the resigning director  

(Mr. Chira Panupong, effective on December 1, 

2007); Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um and proposed the 

addition of another director, Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol, 

who is excellent in accounting and auditing. 

2. Specified criteria for nominating, selecting and  

appointing an Executive Vice President Operations, 

and Information Technology, to support even more 

effectiveness of organizational management by 

management team.

3. Proposed criteria for paying monthly director  

remunerations, meeting allowance, director gratuities 

to the Board of Directors for requesting approval at 

the shareholders meeting.

4. Specified a policy and criteria for paying incentive 

rewards to employees and executives for appropriate 

with the Company’s business performance and to be 

consistent with the remuneration of other companies 

in the same industry.

5.  Specified a policy and criteria for adjusting fair annual 

compensations to be appropriate with the economic 

condition and automotive industry trend.

In addition, the Nomination and Compensation Committee 

requires the management team to make a succession plan for 

the levels of President, Vice President and important positions, 

with the succession plan monitoring constantly to ensure the 

effectiveness of the Company operations and organizational 

management continuously. 

(Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng)

Chairman of the Nomination and Compensation Committee

Nominating and Consideration of Director 
and Management Remunerations

Report of the Nomination and Compensation Committee  •
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The Management has prepared the financial statement ended on December 31, 2008 according to 

the generally certified accounting standard by choosing to use the appropriate and regularly used policy 

including using judgment carefully and reasonably in preparation of financial statement and disclose the 

important information adequately in the remarks of the financial statement.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility 
for Financial Reporting

Mr. Sansern Wongcha-um

Chairman

Mr. Verayut Kitaphanich

President

The Board of Directors realized the responsibility for 

supervising the financial report to be efficient by appointing 

an Audit and Corporate governance Committee consisting 

of qualified persons to be responsible for supervision of the 

quality of the financial report to be accurate and complete, using 

appropriate and regularly used policy including validation to 

have the company got sufficient and appropriate internal control 

system and participation in evaluation of risk for the company. 

In order to protect and reduce risks which may occur from 

fraudulent or abnormal operation significantly and adequacy 

to maintain the company asset.

From the practical methods and supervision mentioned 

above, the committee agreed that the financial of Somboon 

Advance Technology Public Company Limited as at December 

31, 2008 has shown the financial statement and operational 

results correctly, reliably, compliance with the generally certified 

accounting standard and practiced in accordance with the laws 

and related regulations.

•  Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting
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Report of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee

Dear Shareholders of Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

The Audit Committee& CG Committee consists of 3 qualified independent directors, one of them being 

knowledgeable and experienced in accounting. The Audit Committee& CG Committee performed its duties 

based on the scope of responsibilities designated by the Board of Directors and consistently with the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand’s requirements. Based on its review, the Audit Committee resolved to improve its charter 

in compliance with relevant notifications of the Office of Security and Exchange Commission and the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand, which has been announced to take effect on September 1, 2008 in replacement of the 

existing one.

In 2008, there were 8 Audit Committee& CG Committee meetings. Its results of operations were reported 

to the Board of Directors regularly on a quarterly basis. Attendance by individual audit directors is as follows:

Mr. Panja Senadisa Chairman 8/8 times of attendance

Mr. Rangsin Suebsaeng Director 8/8 times of attendance

Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan Director 2/8 times of attendance

Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol Director 6/8 times of attendance

On May 1, 2008, Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan left his audit directorship for the chairmanship of the Executive 

Board. His audit directorship was succeeded by Mr. Paitoon Taveebhol.

In some meetings, the Audit Committee& CG Committee 

would reasonably have discussions with the president, 

management team, accounting auditors, internal auditors. In 

every meeting, the Audit Committee& CG Committee expressed 

its opinions and gave suggestions independently, with subject 

matters summarized below.

Furnishing and Disclosure of 
Financial Report Information

Quarterly financial statements and the 2008 Annual report 

were reviewed jointly with the management team and auditors 

for their concurrence toward the financial report produced  

accurately in the reasonable subject matters and in accordance 

with the generally accepted accounting principle, important  

information disclosure, related-party transactions and transactions  

potentially creating conflicts of interests were reviewed completely, 

adequately and reliably, and the audit plan and audit results by 

the auditors considered and opined before being proposed to 

the Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

The Audit Committee& CG Committee concurred with the 

quarterly financial statements, annual audit plan and interim 

audit results regarding the issues of internal control and annual 

financial statements and had a discussion specifically with the 

auditors without the management team in order to learn about 

problematic issues observed by the auditors concerning the 

development of accounting personnel, delayed production of 

financial statements, and risks information system change, 

which had been reported to the Board of Directors.

Internal Control and Internal Audits

Internal control was overseen in compliance with the 

professional standard to ensure even more adequately  

effective performance and tightened internal control. The  

annual audit plan and report of audit results were concurred with  

suggestions for the internal audit department and management 

team were given for the benefits of performance improvement. 

Continual manpower support and personnel development were 

considered and provided.

Report of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee  •
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The Audit Committee& CG Committee concurred with the 

annual internal audit plan, report of performance progress, and 

reports of audit results of the sales and account receivables 

and payment receipt, fixed assets, inventory, purchase, 

account payables and payments, personnel management, legal  

compliance, and applicable rules, including reports of  

monitoring thereof, and provided to the management team 

notices regarding discovered issues for its urgent performance 

improvement.

Complying with Requirements 
and Applicable Laws

The Company was reviewed for its regular compliance 

with the law on securities and stock exchange, Stock Exchange 

of Thailand’s requirements, and applicable laws. Issues of 

compliance with both internal and external related requirements 

and rules were addressed in every session of consideration of 

reports of internal audit results.

Disclosure of Related-Party 
Transactions

Related-party transactions were considered and  

disclosed in the notes to annual financial statements and 

on a quarterly basis, with opinions expressed toward the  

acquisition or disposal of assets and key investment projects 

of the Company and its subsidiaries. 

Risk Management

Reports of results and progress of risk management were 

considered and given opinions by the Audit Committee based 

on reports from the consulting company, internal auditors and 

Risk Management Committee of the Company.

In respect of the risk management in the past year, the Risk Management Committee was  

suggested by the Audit Committee& CG Committee to put product liability in its checklist and put  

emphasis on personnel and technology replacement plan as they affect the competitiveness and on the 

overall strategic risk factor of the Company.

Good Corporate Governance

The Company was promoted and monitored in terms of ongoing development process of good 

corporate governance and was provided with needed guidelines and recommendations. In addition, 

the Governance Working Group was pushed to perform and monitored in terms of even more seriously 

concrete development. 

The Corporate Governance Policy and Business Ethics and Working Practices Handbooks were 

reviewed by the Audit Committee& CG Committee for use approval by the Board of Directors. The  

structure and duties of the Governance Working Group were concurred with in order to support corporate 

governance and business ethics.

Selecting, Nominating and Appointing Accounting Auditors

In 2008, the overall performance Ernst & Young Office Co., Ltd. was considered satisfactory. The 

Audit Committee has informed the auditors to report to it any deficiencies discovered in the internal control. 

Upon conducting a comparison of qualifications in terms of knowledge, competency and provision 

of services, and operational readiness of two more auditing firms of the same level, the Audit Committee 

agreed to nominate to the Board of Directors Ernst & Young Office Co., Ltd.’s certified professional auditors 

consisting of Miss Sumalee Reewarabandith, Mr. Sophon Permsirivallop and Mrs. Nongluk Pumnoi to the 

•  Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting
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Company’s auditors for the year 2009 with remuneration inclusive of subsidiaries at the amount of Baht 

4,360,000. These auditors do not provide other services to group companies and are proposed to the 

general shareholders meeting for approval.

Self-assessment by Audit Committee& CG Committee

 On February 19, 2009, the Audit Committee& CG Committee conducted a Self-assessment regarding 

its element, training and resources, meetings and activities, relationships with the Chief of Internal  

Audits, auditors and management, as well as its roles in the future. The overall assessment shows that 

its performance is adequate and at a satisfactory level.

In the Audit Committee& CG Committee’s opinion, the Company has an appropriate and  

reliable process of information production and disclosure in the financial report, including adequate risk  

management and internal control with ongoing development for furtherance of the Company’s good and 

sustainable corporate governance.

 Mr. Panja Senadisai

 Chairman of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting  •
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Overview of Business in 2008

The Company and its subsidiaries operate automotive parts manufacturing business, with main 

revenues mostly from the selling of such automotive part products as axle shaft, leaf spring, brake disc, 

brake drum, stabilizer bar, coil spring, etc. to domestic original equipment manufacturers. In the first half of 

the year, automotive industry grew constantly both in local markets and exports, resulting in better results 

of operations of the Company. Although in the second half of the year financial crisis in the U.S. and other 

continents began to effect and cause initial regression of the world economy conditions in fourth quarter, 

trend of declining Baht value, constantly rising of raw material prices, oil price factor moved in a favorable 

way, with the Company’s manufacturing process improved to continuingly reduce costs and increase 

productivity, such as loss and cycle time reduction, realignment of production line to increase production 

capacity, including benefits from the economy of scale, resulting in its better results of operations.

Profit and Loss Analysis

Revenue Analysis

In 2008, the Company has overall revenue of Bt 5,935 million, increasing from last year Bt 858  

million, or 17 percent, consisting of sale revenue at Bt 5,814 million and other sale revenues at Bt 120 million.

The Company’s better sale revenue was as a result of more customer orders and certain unit prices 

being adjusted higher in response to higher raw material prices, including more sales of new products 

when compared to last year.

According to the consolidated financial statements and product line-based revenue in 2008 and 

2007, Somboon Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd. derived its revenue mostly from selling axle shaft 

at Bt 2,007 million and Bt 1,803 million respectively. Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Co., Ltd. earned 

its revenue mostly from the selling of brake disc and brake drum at Bt 700 million and Bt 650 million  

respectively. Bangkok Spring Industrial Co., Ltd. derived its revenue mostly from the selling of leaf spring 

at Bt 643 million and Bt 578 million respectively.

Cost and Expense Analysis

Cost of Sales and Services
In 2008, the Company’s cost of goods sold was Bt 4,655 

million, increasing from last year Bt 733 million, or 20 percent of 

the increasing sales proportion. The cost of goods sold, when 

compared to the sales volume in 2008, equal to 80 percent, 

increasing 2 percent from last year as affected by raw material 

prices being adjusted higher in response to the world economy 

conditions and the fiercely varying Baht value during the year.

Selling and Administrative Expenses
The Company’s selling and administrative expenses in 

2008 were at Bt 374 million, increasing from last year Bt 15 

million, or 4 percent, as a result of the delivery and vehicle 

rental expenses being increased Bt 20 million in response to 

the varying oil prices adjusting higher during the year.
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Financial Expense
The Company’s financial cost in 2008 was Bt 133 million, 

increasing from last year Bt 9 million, or 7 percent, as a result of 

a new Bt 523 million loan drawn for a new plant investment in 

Rayong by its subsidiary (Bangkok Spring Industrial Co., Ltd.) 

and for a new production line investment in Rayong by it and 

its subsidiary (Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Co., Ltd.) at 

a fixed MLR interest rate per annum and fixed rate per annum.

Corporate Tax
In 2008, the Company’s corporate burden was Bt 138 

million, increasing from last year Bt 2 million, or 1 percent, as 

a result of BOI-promoted, corporate tax saving privilege. 

Operating Profit
The Company’s operating profit, exclusive of those 

operating profits from investing in joint-venture companies, 

financial expenses and income tax, was Bt 882 million in 2008, 

increasing from last year Bt 46 million, or 6 percent of goods 

sale revenue, including other revenues in 2008. The reversed 

allowance for impairment of assets was Bt 27 million, equal 

to 3 percent.

Net Profit
In 2008, the Company’s net profit was Bt 635 million, or 

11 percent of the goods sale revenue, being higher than the 

2007 net profit at Bt 591 million, or 12 percent of the goods 

sale revenue. The profit to goods sale revenue ratio decreased 

1 percent as a result of the raw material costs adjusted higher 

and varying Baht value during the year.

Financial Standing Analysis

Assets

When considering its consolidated financial statements, the Company had total assets as of  

December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 at Bt 6,360 million and Bt 5,253 million respectively, increasing 

Bt 1,107 million, or 21 percent, mainly by reason of its fixed assets increased through more land purchase 

in Rayong and construction of a plant building to accommodate new machinery for its production line 

expansion supporting new products and higher production capacity, account receivables, and more  

inventory as a result of the higher selling prices and costs.

Account Receivables
The Company’s net account receivables as of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 was Bt 986 

million and Bt 897 million respectively. The increase of account receivables was due to the goods quantities 

and prices being adjusted higher. The net account receivables as of December 31, 2008 reflects 60 days 

average debt collection period which is slightly faster than in 2007 due to the fact that its major customers 

whose sales volume increased are original equipment manufacturers with relatively fixed credit term.

Investment Fund
In 2007, the Company changed its accounting policy on how to record investment funds in subsidiaries  

in individual financial statements from equity method to cost method in pursuant of the Federation of  

Accounting Profession’s Notification No. 26/2549 (2006) on accounting standard and No. 44 on consolidated 

financial statements and accounting for investment funds in subsidiaries, requiring the recording of accounts of 

investment funds in subsidiaries over which a company has controlling power in individual financial statements 

to use cost method instead of equity method. In its change of accounting policy, the Company has adjusted 

it prior-period individual financial statements shown from comparison purpose as if cost method had been 

used. Its investment funds in subsidiaries based on cost method recorded in its specific balance sheet as of 

December 31, 2008 and as of December 31, 2007 were equally at Bt 1,252 million.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis   •
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During 2007, the Company bought common stocks 

of International Casting Products Co., Ltd. from its existing  

shareholders of 10-Baht par value per share, at Baht 11 per  

share, totaling Bt 165 million. Fund was raised Bt 35 million,  

resulting in International Casting Products Co., Ltd. having paid-up 

ordinary share capital at Bt 185 million (common stocks at 18.5 

million shares with 10-Baht par value). During that period, the stock 

purchase underwriting amount of Bt 4 million was deducted, making 

the investment fund in the subsidiary remaining at Bt 161 million net.

When considering the consolidated financial statements as 

at December 31, 2008, the Company had net investment funds 

in related companies at Bt 138 million, consisting of Yamada 

Somboon Co., Ltd., Nishinbo Somboon Automotive Co., Ltd., 

Somboon Somic Manufacturing Co., Ltd., and Tsushiyoshi 

Somboon Coated Sand Co., Ltd., with its investment fund cost 

in those companies at Bt 73 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment
In 2008, the Company and two of its subsidiaries 

changed their accounting policy on recording of machinery 

value account from new price valuating to cost method. The 

Company Management and two of its subsidiaries see that 

the new method is practical in accordance with the standard 

accounting, book 32, title: Property, Plant and Equipment and 

is easy to practice. About the change, the Company and two 

of its subsidiaries adjusted in reverse the financial statement 

of the previous period before comparison as if the company 

has done the record under the cost method without any impact 

to the profit and lost statement, however the impact is on the 

balance sheet. The value of the machine of the Company and 

two of its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 decreased 

representing 65 million baht and 143 million baht respectively.

The Company’s property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2008 were at Bt 4,177 million. In 
2007, they were at Bt 3,278 million, increasing Bt 899 million, or 27 percent, resulting from the fact that one of its 
subsidiaries had bought a land from constructing a factory building with new machinery to increase its production 
capacity at Rayong plant and that it and one of its subsidiaries had invested in new machinery to increase their 
production capacity at Rayong plant, hence the increase of its fixed assets by Bt 1,342 million.

During 2008, the company arranged to have the price assessment of land and building assessed by the 
independent assessment staff and the assets value was adjusted on December 31, 2008 so that the price was 
the newly assessed price. The net increasing value of land and building was recorded for 93 million baht in the 
capital excess account from the assets valuation of the company and subsidiary companies. At the same time, 
there was record of increasing value of the building price previously realized as reduced price, to be the property 
devaluation in previous year, amounting 27 million baht in the statement of income form the debit/credit turning 
of allowance for devaluation of properties. 

The company had the capital excess account from the assets valuation of the company and subsidiary 
companies. In the total shareholders’ equity on December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, equal to 632 million 
baht and 542 million baht respectively. For the capital excess from the assets valuation, the was amortization 
according life of each type of assets. During 2008, there was amortization of the capital excess from the assets 
valuation of the company and the subsidiary companies, in total amount of  3 million baht    

Liabilities

As of December 31, 2008, the Company’s total liabilities were Bt 3,800 million comprising short-term  
liabilities of Bt 2,102 million and long-term liabilities of Bt 1,698 million, Bt 593 million more than last year, or 18 
percent, due to the increase of trade account payables by Bt137 million as result of adjusting higher of prices of 
production raw materials and supplies. The creditors purchased the property from investment in the fixed assets 
increasingly 124 million baht. The short term loan from importing raw materials increased 197 million baht and 
liabilities from loan from financial institute increased caused by the investment in new factories of the subsidiaries. 
It is also the investment to increase the production line of the Company and one subsidiary, representing 523 
million baht. At the same time the long term loan is returned 430 million baht.
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Shareholders’ Equity

Capital Structure
The Company’s shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2008 was Bt 2,561 million, increasing from 

prior year Bt 515 million, or accounting to 25 percent. The Company resolved to pay dividends out of its 

remaining profit in 2007 to shareholders in the amount of Bt 120 million on May 15, 2008.

On August 14, 2008, the Board meeting resolved to pay interim dividends at a total of Bt 90 million 

on September 12, 2008.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company’s capital structure comprised liabilities at a total of Bt 3,800 

million and shareholders’ equity at Bt 2,561 million, representing debt to shareholder’s equity ratio of 1.48.

Cash Flow Analysis

According to the consolidated financial statements ended as of December 31, 2008 and as of 

December 31, 2007, net operating cash flow receipts were Bt 915 million and Bt 1,028 million respectively. 

The cash flow from investment was in negative terms of 1,019 and 574 million baht (respectively), resulting 

from buying of land, construction of building and buying of new machines in Rayong Province in the year 

2008, amounting 1,002 million baht and in the year 2007, amounting 487 million baht to support the  

expansion of work in the company’s projects mainly. There was cash flow received from the cash raising 

activities in the year 2008, amounting 16 million baht resulting from the loan from the financial institute 

for 532 million baht and short-term loan from import of foreign country ran materials for 192 million baht 

but at the same time there was repayment of long-term loan for 430 million baht and dividend payment 

of 210 million baht. In the year 2007, there was cash flow received from cash raising activities to be in 

negative terms for 425 million baht from dividend payment of 180 million baht and loan repayment to 

financial institutes for 325 million baht.

With the fierce economic crisis in the U.S. spreading 

into Europe and other continents at a later time, the world 

economy has entered regression affecting industrial business 

sectors, particularly the shrinking automotive market in  

Thailand resulting in overall sales volume both domestically  

and from exports decreased and, consequently, announcements 

from carmakers to reduce their production capacity  

approximately by 30-50 percent, thus affecting the Company’s 

results of operations. In spite of that, the Company has 

come up with measures and strategic plans to cushion the  

forthcoming crisis by way of increasing revenue, reducing  

production cost and expenses simultaneously. Increase revenue 

can be achieved through an expansion of the production capacity to  

accommodate new markets from agricultural vehicles.  

Product cost reduction can achieved through seeking of new 

raw material sources, increasing of production effectiveness 

by the appropriate reduction of manpower, workdays and 

overtime in line with the dropping production, carefully planned 

production to save energy and other production expenses, 

including relocating parts of the production line to Rayong to 

capitalize on the BOI-promoted privilege, as well as product 

development by increasing engineering design development 

capability, research and development to reduce production cost 

and gain continual acceptance from automakers, personnel and 

effective working process development in response to customer 

demands to their maximum satisfaction. With the Company’s 

planned strategies and vision in professional management, 

competition effectiveness and financial confidence are assured. 

With its operations based consistently on corporate governance 

guideline, the Company will be able to perform securely and 

strongly and survive the world economic crisis. 

Major Factors and Influences Potentially  
Affecting Future Operations or Financial Standing

Management’s Discussion and Analysis   •
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I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Somboon Advance Technology 

Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008, the related consolidated statements 

of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the separate  

financial statements of Somboon Advance Technology Public Company Limited for the same period. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Company and its subsidiaries as to 

their correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these financial statements based on my audit. The consolidated financial statements of Somboon Advance 

Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2007, and the 

separate financial statements of Somboon Advance Technology Public Company Limited for the same period, 

as presented herein for comparative purposes, were audited by another auditor of our firm who, under her 

report dated 27 February 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Report of Independent Auditor
To The Shareholders of Somboon Advance Technology Pcl.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally 

accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that 

I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a 

reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above 

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

Somboon Advance Technology Public Company Limited and 

its subsidiaries and of Somboon Advance Technology Public 

Company Limited as at 31 December 2008, the results of 

their operations, and cash flows for the year then ended, in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the above financial 

statements, I draw attention to the matter as discussed in 

Note 4 to the financial statements. As at 1 January 2008, the 

Company and its two subsidiaries changed their accounting 

policy for recording valuation of machinery from a revaluation 

to a historical cost basis. Those companies have thus restated 

the consolidated and separate financial statements as at 31 

December 2007 and for the year then ended to reflect this 

accounting change.

Sumalee Reewarabandith

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3970

Ernst & Young Office Limited 

Bangkok: 25 February 2009

•  Report of Independent Auditor
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(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements

Note 2008 2007
(Restated) 2008 2007

(Restated)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 125,073,235 213,721,846 35,553,545 69,417,520 

Current investment - restricted cash at bank 8  - 15,031,531  - 15,031,531 

Trade accounts receivable - related parties 9, 10 69,115,863 50,073,030 2,900,895 2,724,940 

Net trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties 9 917,093,404 847,261,665 353,692,118 365,272,239 

Other receivable - related parties 10 242,874  - 9,986,626 4,298,706 

Short-term loans to subsidiary companies 10  -  - 70,000,000  - 

Current portion of long-term loans to subsidiary companies 10  -  - 215,500,000 224,500,000 

Inventories - net 11 591,550,213 447,922,328 128,774,643 152,666,470 

Other current assets 126,697,933 102,908,537 57,210,621 15,963,545 

Total current assets 1,829,773,522 1,676,918,937 873,618,448 849,874,951 

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiary companies 12  -  - 1,252,018,452 1,252,018,452 

Investments in associated companies 13 110,920,321 92,466,228  -  - 

Other long-term investments - net 14 26,650,000 26,650,000  -  - 

Long-term loans to subsidiary companies

 - net of current portion 10  -  - 420,885,600 636,555,600 

Property, plant and equipment - net 15 4,176,742,812 3,277,724,464 1,322,077,418 976,667,571 

Deposit for purchase of land and machinery 38,181,879 27,273,416 9,491,159 10,899 

Non-operating assets 16 106,773,600 107,779,100  -  - 

Goodwill 17,934,556 17,934,556  -  - 

Intangible assets - net 17 25,768,437 4,707,944 13,304,244 1,577,173 

Other non-current assets 27,724,327 21,516,012 11,012,638 9,890,184 

Total non-current assets 4,530,695,932 3,576,051,720 3,028,789,511 2,876,719,879 

Total assets 6,360,469,454 5,252,970,657 3,902,407,959 3,726,594,830 

Balance sheets
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries

as at 31 December 2008 and 2007

Balance sheets  •
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(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements

Note 2008 2007
(Restated) 2008 2007

(Restated)

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from banks 18 75,925,378 19,930,185  -  - 

Short-term loans from banks - trust receipts 19 309,729,775 111,091,666  -  - 

Trade accounts payable - related parties 10  -  - 352,488 818,336 

Trade accounts payable - unrelated parties 868,402,869 731,692,769 289,194,860 264,428,120 

Other payable - related parties 10  -  - 3,908,060 639,615 

Current portion of long-term loans 20 509,968,000 420,183,000 361,288,000 332,013,000 

Current portion of finance lease payable 21 3,364,262 3,963,178 2,209,507 3,296,179 

Other current liabilities

 Accounts payable - purchases of assets 132,851,855 8,926,447 61,343,155 1,822,531 

 Income tax payable 49,849,508 65,863,653 12,623,619 11,633,710 

 Account payable - share subscription  - 11,066,084  - 11,066,084 

 Others 151,466,903 137,245,775 62,207,827 53,297,334 

334,168,266 223,101,959 136,174,601 77,819,659 

Total current liabilities 2,101,558,550 1,509,962,757 793,127,516 679,014,909 

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans - net of current portion 20 1,695,464,168 1,683,396,600 1,279,628,556 1,371,371,600 

Finance lease payable - net of current portion 21 2,604,575 6,770,804 2,461,313 6,247,920 

Other non-current liabilities  - 6,897,892 838,040 8,670,229 

Total non-current liabilities 1,698,068,743 1,697,065,296 1,282,927,909 1,386,289,749 

Total liabilities 3,799,627,293 3,207,028,053 2,076,055,425 2,065,304,658 

Balance sheets (continued)

Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2008 and 2007

•  Balance sheets (continued)
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(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements

Note 2008 2007
(Restated) 2008 2007

(Restated)

Shareholders' equity

Share capital

 Registered

 300,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 

 Issued and paid-up

 300,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 

Share premium 84,562,861 84,562,861 84,562,861 84,562,861 

Unrealized gain

 Revaluation surplus on assets - the Company 4, 22 65,827,644 21,616,832 65,827,644 21,616,832 

 Revaluation surplus on assets - subsidiaries 4, 22 566,498,881 520,501,341  -  - 

Retained earnings

 Appropriated - statutory reserve 24 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 

 Unappropriated 1,513,952,775 1,089,261,570 1,345,962,029 1,225,110,479 

Total shareholders' equity 2,560,842,161 2,045,942,604 1,826,352,534 1,661,290,172 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  6,360,469,454  5,252,970,657  3,902,407,959  3,726,594,830 

Balance sheets (continued)

Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2008 and 2007

Balance sheets (continued)  •
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Income statements
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements

Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

Revenues

Revenues from sales and services 5,814,396,501 4,979,277,871 2,007,280,054 1,803,486,173 

Interest income 3,354,356 3,423,644 47,496,517 57,097,791 

Exchange gains  - 6,215,816  - 356,189 

Income from reversal of impairment loss 15 26,745,818  -  -  - 

Other income 90,313,820 88,623,658  165,217,304 142,476,422 

Total revenues 5,934,810,495 5,077,540,989 2,219,993,875 2,003,416,575 

Expenses

Cost of sales and services 4,655,011,079 3,882,422,340 1,493,615,911 1,329,992,962 

Selling expenses 83,693,581 94,721,521 29,522,474 58,080,991 

Administrative expenses 287,732,468  263,969,865 234,809,254  204,660,923 

Exchange loss 23,558,467  - 688,383  - 

Amortisation of goodwill from business acquisition  - 512,416  -  - 

Other expenses 2,411,933  - 423,336  - 

Total expenses 5,052,407,528 4,241,626,142 1,759,059,358 1,592,734,876 

Income before finance cost and corporate income tax  882,402,967 835,914,847 460,934,517 410,681,699 

Financial cost (132,826,445) (124,201,208) (94,655,374) (105,848,312)

Share of income from investments in associates 22,717,092 15,115,760  -  - 

Income before corporate income tax 772,293,614 726,829,399 366,279,143 304,833,387 

Corporate income tax 25 (137,616,409) (135,689,020) (35,441,593) (23,698,452)

Net income for the year 634,677,205 591,140,379 330,837,550 281,134,935 

Basic earnings per share 27 

Net income 2.12 1.97 1.10 0.94 

•  Income statements
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Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007
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Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(U
ni

t:B
ah

t)

Se
pa
ra
te
 fi
na
nc
ia
l s
ta
te
m
en
ts

N
ot
e

Is
su
ed
 a
nd

 
pa
id
-u
p

sh
ar
e 
ca
pi
ta
l

Sh
ar
e

pr
em

iu
m

R
ev
al
ua
tio

n
su
rp
lu
s

on
 a
ss
et
s

R
et
ai
ne
d 
ea
rn
in
gs

To
ta
l

A
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
d 
-

st
at
ut
or
y 
re
se
rv
e

U
na
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
d

B
al
an
ce
 - 
as
 a
t 3
1 
D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
6,
 

 a
s 
pr
ev
io
us
ly
 re

po
rt
ed

30
0,

00
0,

00
0

84
,5

62
,8

61
97

,6
00

,7
23

30
,0

00
,0

00
1,

12
3,

97
5,

54
4

1,
63

6,
13

9,
12

8

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f t
he

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
y 

 
 f

or
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 m

ac
hi

ne
ry

4 
-

-
(7

5,
49

6,
29

2)
-

-
(7

5,
49

6,
29

2)

B
al
an
ce
 - 
as
 a
t 3
1 
D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
6,
 a
s 
re
st
at
ed

30
0,

00
0,

00
0

84
,5

62
,8

61
22

,1
04

,4
31

30
,0

00
,0

00
1,

12
3,

97
5,

54
4

1,
56

0,
64

2,
83

6

Ex
pe
ns
es
 re

co
gn

is
ed
 d
ire

ct
ly
 in
 e
qu

ity
:

A
m

or
tis

at
io

n 
of

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

su
rp

lu
s 

on
 a

ss
et

s
-

-
(4

87
,5

99
)

-
-

(4
87

,5
99

)

To
ta
l e
xp
en
se
s 
re
co
gn

is
ed
 d
ire

ct
ly
 in
 e
qu

ity
-

-
(4

87
,5

99
)

-
-

(4
87

,5
99

)

N
et

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

-
-

28
1,

13
4,

93
5

28
1,

13
4,

93
5

To
ta
l i
nc
om

e 
re
co
gn

is
ed
 fo

r t
he
 y
ea
r

-
-

(4
87

,5
99

)
-

28
1,

13
4,

93
5

28
0,

64
7,

33
6

D
iv

id
en

d 
pa

id
23

 
-

-
-

-
(1

80
,0

00
,0

00
)

(1
80

,0
00

,0
00

)

B
al
an
ce
 - 
as
 a
t 3
1 
D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
7,
 a
s 
re
st
at
ed

30
0,

00
0,

00
0

84
,5

62
,8

61
21

,6
16

,8
32

30
,0

00
,0

00
1,

22
5,

11
0,

47
9

1,
66

1,
29

0,
17

2

B
al
an
ce
 - 
as
 a
t 3
1 
D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
7,
 

 a
s 
pr
ev
io
us
ly
 re

po
rt
ed

30
0,

00
0,

00
0

84
,5

62
,8

61
86

,2
60

,6
95

30
,0

00
,0

00
1,

22
5,

11
0,

47
9

1,
72

5,
93

4,
03

5

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f t
he

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
y

 f
or

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 m
ac

hi
ne

ry
4 

-
-

(6
4,

64
3,

86
3)

-
-

(6
4,

64
3,

86
3)

B
al
an
ce
 - 
as
 a
t 3
1 
D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
7,
 a
s 
re
st
at
ed

30
0,

00
0,

00
0

84
,5

62
,8

61
21

,6
16

,8
32

30
,0

00
,0

00
1,

22
5,

11
0,

47
9

1,
66

1,
29

0,
17

2

In
co
m
e 
(e
xp
en
se
s)
 re

co
gn

is
ed
 d
ire

ct
ly
 in
 e
qu

ity
:

S
ur

pl
us

 fr
om

 n
ew

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n

15
 

-
-

44
,6

99
,7

47
-

-
44

,6
99

,7
47

A
m

or
tis

at
io

n 
of

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

su
rp

lu
s 

on
 a

ss
et

s
-

-
(4

88
,9

35
)

-
-

(4
88

,9
35

)

To
ta
l i
nc
om

e 
re
co
gn

is
ed
 d
ire

ct
ly
 in
 e
qu

ity
-

-
44

,2
10

,8
12

-
-

44
,2

10
,8

12

N
et

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

-
-

33
0,

83
7,

55
0

33
0,

83
7,

55
0

To
ta
l i
nc
om

e 
re
co
gn

is
ed
 fo

r t
he
 y
ea
r

-
-

44
,2

10
,8

12
-

33
0,

83
7,

55
0

37
5,

04
8,

36
2

D
iv

id
en

d 
pa

id
23

 
-

-
-

-
(2

09
,9

86
,0

00
)

(2
09

,9
86

,0
00

)

B
al
an
ce
 - 
as
 a
t 3
1 
D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
8

30
0,

00
0,

00
0

84
,5

62
,8

61
65

,8
27

,6
44

30
,0

00
,0

00
1,

34
5,

96
2,

02
9

1,
82

6,
35

2,
53

4

•  Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity



Annual Report 2008 69

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Cash flow statements
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income before tax 772,293,614 726,829,399 366,279,143 304,833,387

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)

 operating activities:

 Depreciation and amortisation 357,453,288 306,896,885 144,788,797 136,687,197

 Unrealised loss (gain) on exchange 23,002,312 (1,169,257) 670,692 143,756

 Gain on disposal of fixed assets (2,139,449) (2,366,423) (265,512) -

 Increase (decrease) in allowance for diminution 5,396,487 4,503,596 (767,222) 2,776,501

 in value of inventories 3,455,492 6,865,235 3,035,064 6,826,466

 Loss (gain) on disposal of non-operating assets (140,000) 20,805 - -

 Gain insurance claims for asset losses (3,874,600) - - -

 Income from reversal of impairment loss (26,745,818) - - -

 Loss on impairment of assets 965,500 - - -

 Amortisation of fee for adjustment of interest rate - net 1,022,384 1,197,140 518,785 748,922

 Interest income (3,354,356) (3,423,644) (47,496,517) (57,097,791)

 Interest expenses and fee for refinancing 122,729,458 119,419,301 91,916,352 102,694,210

 Share of income from investments in associates (22,717,092) (15,115,760) - -

Cash provided from operating activities before changes

 in operating assets and liabilities 1,227,347,220 1,143,657,277 558,679,582 497,612,648

Decrease (increase) in operating assets

 Trade accounts receivable - related parties (19,042,833) 161,141,670 (175,954) 86,088

 Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties (69,288,611) (124,876,063) 11,580,131 (61,761,641)

 Other receivable - related parties 110,226 (353,100) (5,687,920) 14,574,303

 Inventories (149,024,371) 24,280,911 24,659,050 13,448,210

 Other current assets 3,707,989 (45,197,646) (37,447,006) (3,688,873)

 Other non-current assets (42,405,324) (6,128,346) (6,430,411) (6,673,421)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities

 Trade accounts payable - related parties (1,135,000) 1,109,620 (465,848) (539,660)

 Trade accounts payable - unrelated parties 125,540,771 (53,515,838) 22,428,180 37,559,628

 Other payable - related parties - - 3,268,445 639,614

 Other current liabilities 7,985,596 (9,959,894) 1,001,100 28,420,666

 Other liabilities (6,897,892) 62,401,329 (6,164,331) 3,784,288

Cash flows from operating activities 1,076,897,771 1,152,559,920 565,245,018 523,461,850

 Cash paid for corporate income tax (162,115,116) (124,178,462) (37,072,877) (25,138,815)

Net cash flows from operating activities 914,782,655 1,028,381,458 528,172,141 498,323,035

Cash flow statements  •
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Cash flow statements (continued)

Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash payment for investment in subsidiary company - - - (185,000,000)

Net cash paid for purchase of subsidiary company - (149,701,986) - -

Interest income 3,354,356 3,423,644 47,496,517 57,097,791

Dividend received from associated company 4,263,000 858,000 - -

Decrease in other short-term loan - 5,000,000 - -

Decrease (increase) in short-term loan to subsidiary companies - - (70,000,000) 43,000,000

Increase in long-term loans to subsidiary companies - - - (114,000,000)

Fees for adjustment of interest rate on long-term loans to

 subsidiary companies - - - 4,220,557

Long-term loans payment from subsidiary companies - - 224,670,000 214,455,000

Decrease (increase) in other long-term loan 1,000,000 (5,000,000) 1,000,000 (5,000,000)

Decrease (increase) in deposit for purchases of land and machinery (10,908,463) 57,433,084 (9,491,159) 240,000

Purchase of intangible assets (24,615,310) (2,195,652) (13,012,125) (1,259,635)

Acquisition of fixed assets (1,002,117,331) (486,974,716) (387,145,326) (90,160,743)

Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 1,184,364 2,366,423 523,364 -

Cash received from claim of insurance contracts 8,258,567 - - -

Proceeds from sales of non-operating assets 180,000 1,120,000 - -

Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,019,400,817) (573,671,203) (205,958,729) (76,407,030)

Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash at bank 15,031,531 (15,031,531) 15,031,531 (15,031,531)

Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts 5,995,193 (26,284,063) - -

Increase (decrease) in trust receipt 191,653,441 22,792,486 - -

Cash paid under finance leases (4,765,146) (2,904,109) (4,873,279) (3,199,108)

Cash received from short-term loans 50,000,000 - - -

Cash received from long-term loans 531,775,568 246,000,000 269,714,956 146,000,000

Repayment of long-term loans (429,923,000) (325,229,000) (332,183,000) (299,229,000)

Interest expenses (127,744,136) (135,477,325) (93,781,595) (101,679,346)

Fee for refinance (6,067,900) - - -

Fees for adjustment of interest rate on long-term loan - (8,441,113) - (8,441,113)

Dividend paid (209,986,000) (180,000,000) (209,986,000) (180,000,000)

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 15,969,551 (424,574,655) (356,077,387) (461,580,098)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (88,648,611) 30,135,600 (33,863,975) (39,664,093)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 213,721,846 183,586,246 69,417,520 109,081,613

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 125,073,235 213,721,846 35,553,545 69,417,520

•  Cash flow statements (continued)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007
Supplemental cash flows information

Non-cash items

 Amortisation of revaluation surplus on assets 3,150,968 3,009,465 488,935 487,599

 Purchases of assets that have not yet been paid 132,851,855 8,926,447 61,343,155 1,822,531

 Purchases of vehicles under financial lease - 7,893,000 - 7,893,000

 Transfer fixed assets to assets for sale - 5,829,264 - -

 Share subscription payable - 11,066,084 - 11,066,084

Cash flow statements (continued)

Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

Cash flow statements (continued)  •



Somboon Advance Technology Public Co., Ltd.72

1. General information

1.1 Corporate information

Somboon Advance Technology Public Company Limited 

(“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and 

domiciled in Thailand. Its parent company is Somboon 

Holding Company Limited, incorporated as a limited 

company under Thai laws. The Company operates in 

Thailand and is principally engaged in the manufacture 

of pick-up axles and truck trunnion shafts.

The Company’s registered address is 129 Moo 2, 

Bangna-Trad Road, Tambon Bangchalong, Amphur 

Bangplee, Samutprakarn.

1.2 Economic crisis 

Over the past year, the financial crisis experienced by 

the United States of America has had a far reaching  

recessionary effect on the global economy, a tight 

squeeze on credit and reduced consumer confidence, 

despite concerted efforts by the governments of 

many countries to contain the crisis. These financial 

statements have been prepared on the bases of facts 

currently known to the Company, and on estimates and 

assumptions currently considered appropriate.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated 

under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance 

with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 14  

September 2001, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the 

Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from such financial 

statements in Thai language.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise 

disclosed in the accounting policies.

3. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements for the years ended 31 

December 2008 and 2007 of the Company and the following subsidiary companies.

Subsidiaries
Percentage of 
shareholding Principal activities

2008 2007

Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Company Limited 100 100 Manufacture and sale of autoparts

Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited 100 100 Manufacture and sale of autoparts

International Casting Products Company Limited 100 100 Manufacture and sale of autoparts

The percentage of the assets and revenues of the subsidiaries as included in the consolidated 

financial statements as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows: 

Notes to consolidated financial statements
Somboon Advance Technology Pcl. and its subsidiaries
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007
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Subsidiaries

Assets as a 
percentage

of the total assets
included in the  
consolidated
balance sheets

Revenues as 
a perc entage

of the total revenues
included in the 
consolidated

statements of income
2008 2007

(Restated)
2008 2007

Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Company Limited 26.8 28.0 37.1 38.6

Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited 33.8 30.9 28.5 26.5

International Casting Products Company Limited 9.3 10.1 - 5.4

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company 

obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the 

parent company, using consistent significant accounting policies.

Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated 

from the consolidated financial statements.

The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries presented under the 

cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.

4. Change in accounting policy for 
recording valuation of machinery

In 2008, the Company and its two subsidiaries have 

changed their accounting policy for recording valuation 

of machinery from a revaluation to a historical cost  

basis. The management considers the new policy 

to be in compliance with TAS 32 Property, plant and 

equipment, and to be more convenient in practice. 

The Company and its subsidiaries have restated the 

2007 financial statements for comparative purposes, 

with no effect to the net income. This change resulted 

in a Baht 208 million decrease in consolidated assets 

(Separate assets: Baht 65 million), and a decrease in 

shareholder’s equity in the same amount.

5. Adoption of new accounting 
standards

5.1 Accounting standards which are effective 
for the current year

The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued  

Notifications No. 9/2550, 38/2550 and 62/2550 mandating 

the use of new accounting standards as follows.

TAS 25 (revised 2007) Cash Flow Statements

TAS 29 (revised 2007) Leases

TAS 31 (revised 2007) Inventories

TAS 33 (revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

TAS 35 (revised 2007) Presentation of Financial  

 Statements

TAS 39 (revised 2007) Accounting Policies,  

 Changes in Accounting  

 Estimates and Errors

TAS 41 (revised 2007) Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 43 (revised 2007) Business Combinations

TAS 49 (revised 2007) Construction Contracts

TAS 51 Intangible Assets

Notes to consolidated financial statements  •
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These accounting standards become effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning 

on or after 1 January 2008. The management has assessed the effect of these standards and 

believes that TAS 49 is not relevant to the business of the Company while TAS 25, TAS 29, TAS 31, 

TAS 33, TAS 35, TAS 39, TAS 41 and TAS 51 do not have any significant impact on the financial 

statements for the current year, except for the following accounting standard. 

TAS 43 (revised 2007) “Business Combinations”

TAS 43 (revised 2007) does not require the Company to amortise goodwill acquired in a business 

combination. Such goodwill is instead to be tested for impairment, and measured at cost less 

accumulated impairment losses. This accounting standard applies to goodwill arising from business 

combinations for which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2008. Previously recognised 

goodwill can be accounted for prospectively, with the Company discontinuing the amortisation of 

the goodwill and instead testing for impairment, as from the beginning of the first fiscal year starting 

on or after 1 January 2008.

5.2 Accounting standards which are not 
effective for the current year

The Federation of Accounting Professions has also 

issued Notifications No. 86/2551 mandating the use of 

the following new accounting standards.

TAS 36 (revised 2007) Impairment of Assets

TAS 54 (revised 2007) Non-current Assets Held  

 for Sale and Discontinued  

 Operations

These accounting standards will become effective for 

the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or 

after 1 January 2009. The management has assessed 

the effect of these standards and believes that they 

will not have any significant impact on the financial 

statements for the year in which they are initially applied.

6. Significant accounting policies

6.1 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks 

and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to 

the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value 

added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts 

and allowances.

Rendering of services
Service revenue is recognised when services have been 

rendered taking into account the stage of completion. 

Interest income 
Interest income is recognised as interest accrues based 

on the effective rate method. 

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the 

dividends is established. 

6.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, 

cash at bank, and all highly liquid investments with an 

original maturity of three months or less and not subject 

to withdrawal restrictions.

6.3 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net 

realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is 

provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred 

in collection of receivables.  The allowance is generally 

based on collection experience and analysis of debt 

aging.

•  Notes to consolidated financial statements
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6.4 Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valued at the 

lower of cost (average basis) and net realisable value. 

Cost of finished goods and work in process includes cost 

of raw materials, direct labour and factory overheads. 

Raw materials, spare parts and factory supplies are 

valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) and 

net realisable value and are charged to production costs 

whenever consumed.

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory will be 

set up for old, obsolete, slow-moving or deteriorated 

inventories.

6.5 Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are accounts for in the 

separate financial statements using the cost method.

Investments in associated companies are accounted 

for in the consolidated financial statements using the 

equity method, whereby the investments are recorded 

at cost at the acquisition date and, for each subsequent 

year, adjusted to incorporate the proportionate share 

of the operating results in the associated companies.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which 

are classified as other investments, are stated at cost 

net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any). 

The weighted average method is used for computation 

of the cost of investments. 

6.6 Property, plant and equipment / Depreciation

Land is stated at revalued amount. Buildings and 

equipment are stated at cost or revalued amount less 

accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on 

impairment of assets (if any).

Land and buildings are initially recorded at cost on 

the acquisition date, and subsequently revalued by an 

independent appraiser to their fair values. Revaluations 

will be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the 

carrying amount of the assets does not differ materially 

from their fair value at the balance sheet date. This 

excluded land and buildings of a subsidiary, which are 

stated at cost, but the difference in accounting policy 

was adjusted for in the consolidated financial statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Differences arising from revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows: 

 - When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase 

should be credited directly to shareholders’ equity under the heading of “Revaluation 

surplus on assets”. However, a revaluation increase should be recognised as income to 

the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised 

as an expense in the income statement.

 - When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease 

should be recognised as an expense in the income statement. However, a revaluation 

decrease should be charged directly against any related “Revaluation surplus on assets” 

to the extent that the decrease does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus 

in respect of that same asset. Any excess amount is to be recognised as an expense in 

the income statement.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their cost or the revalued 

amount on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Notes to consolidated financial statements  •
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The Company Subsidiaries

Land improvement, buildings and other premises 20-30 years 20-40 years

Machinery 5-18 years 5-18 years

Tools and factory equipment 5 years 5 years

Fixtures and office equipment 3-5 years 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years 5 years

No depreciation has been provided for land and construction in progress.

Depreciation of assets which have been revalued as included in income statement is calculated by 

using straight-line basis over the remainder of their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of assets 

which have been devalued through appraisal is calculated on the revalued amount. Depreciation 

of assets of which the value has increased through appraisal is calculated based on cost. 

Depreciation attributed to the surplus portion is deducted against revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity.

6.7 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 

that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 

capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed 

in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity 

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

6.8 Non-operating assets

Non-operating assets are stated at cost less allowance 

for impairment (if any).

6.9 Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are measured at cost. Following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less 

any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment losses (if any). 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a 

systematic basis over the economic useful life and 

tested for impairment whenever there is an indication 

that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amor-

tisation period and the amortisation method of such 

intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial 

year end. The amortisation expense is charged to the 

income statement.

A summary of the useful lives of intangible assets with 

finite useful lives is as follows.

 The Company Subsidiaries

Computer software 5 years 3-5 years

6.10 Goodwill 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, which is the  

excess of the cost of the business combination over the 

Company’s share in the net fair value of the acquiree’s 

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If 

the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the 

net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is 

recognised directly in the income statement.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated 

impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment 

annually and when circumstances indicate that the 

carrying value may be impaired.

•  Notes to consolidated financial statements
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired  

in a business combination is, allocated to each of the  

Company’s cash generating units (or group of 

cash-generating units) that are expected to benefit from  

the synergies of the combination. The Company estimates 

the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit  

(or group of cash-generating units) to which the  

goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the 

cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an 

impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating 

to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

6.11 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals 

that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether 

directly or indirectly, or which are under common control 

with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals 

which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the 

Company that gives them significant influence over the 

Company, key management personnel, directors and 

officers with authority in the planning and direction of 

the Company’s operations.

6.12 Finance leases

Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the 

risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 

leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower 

of the fair value of the leased assets and the present 

value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding  

rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included 

in long-term payables, while the interest element is 

charged to the income statements over the lease period. 

The asset acquired under finance lease is depreciated 

over the useful life of the asset.

6.13 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into 

Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 

in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the 

exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. 

Gains and losses on exchange are included in 

determining income.

6.14 Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries performs impairment reviews in respect 

of the property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes 

in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Company also carries out annual 

impairment reviews in respect of goodwill. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable 

amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in 

use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows 

are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market  

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value 

less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by 

a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the amount that the Company and 

its subsidiaries could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between 

knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the costs of disposal. 
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An impairment loss is recognised in the income  

statement. However in cases where property and plant 

were previously revalued and the revaluation was taken 

to equity, a part of such impairment is recognised in 

equity up to the amount of the previous revaluation.

6.15 Employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the 

social security fund and provident fund are recognised 

as expenses when incurred.

6.16  Income tax

Income tax is provided in the accounts based on taxable 

profit determined in accordance with tax legislation. 

6.17 Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward  

exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates 

of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Gains and 

losses from the translation are included in determining 

income. Premiums or discounts on forward exchange 

contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over 

the contract periods.

7. Significant accounting judgments 
and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles at times 

requires management to make subjective judgments 

and estimates regarding matters that are inherently  

uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect 

reported amounts and disclosures and actual results 

could differ. The significant accounting judgments and 

estimates are as follow:

Leases 
In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an 

operating lease or finance lease, the management is 

required to use judgment regarding whether significant 

risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has 

been transferred, taking into consideration terms and 

conditions of the arrangement. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts
In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and 

estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding 

debts and the prevailing economic condition. 

Impairment of equity investments
Subsidiaries treat other investments as impaired when the management judges that there has been 

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence 

of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment.

Property plant and equipment/Depreciation
In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates 

of the useful lives and salvage values of the Company and its subsidiaries’ plant and equipment 

and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values when there are any changes. 

The Company and its subsidiaries measure land and buildings at revalued amounts. Such amounts 

are determined by the independent valuer using the fair market value for land and the replacement 

cost less accumulated depreciation for buildings. The valuation involves certain assumptions and 

estimates.
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Goodwill and intangible assets
The initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets, and subsequent 

impairment testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the 

asset or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the 

present value of those cash flows.

8. Current investment - restriced cash at bank

As at 31 December 2007, restricted cash at bank comprised a deposit placed in an escrow account 

in order to guarantee the balance under the agreement to purchase investment in International 

Casting Products Company Limited, payable in six months, counting from 25 July 2007.

9. Trade accounts receivable

The outstanding balances of trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are 

aged, based on due date, as follows:

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated 
financial statements

Separate 
financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

 Not yet due 68,867,301 39,865,706 2,900,895 2,724,940

 Overdue - less than 3 months - 10,207,324 - -

 3 - 12 months 31,709 - - -

 Overdue 12 months 216,853 - - -

Total 69,115,863 50,073,030 2,900,895 2,724,940

Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties

 Not yet due 914,825,655 843,266,400 353,692,118 365,272,239

 Overdue

  Less than 3 months 2,152,997 3,939,610 - -

  3 - 12 months 113,707 55,655 - -

 Over 12 months 4,724,960 4,723,915 - -

Total 921,817,319 851,985,580 353,692,118 365,272,239

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,723,915) (4,723,915) - -

Net 917,093,404 847,261,665 353,692,118 365,272,239

Notes to consolidated financial statements  •
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10. Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with  

related parties, which have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between 

the Company and those companies. Below is a summary of those transactions.

 (Unit:Million Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements Pricing Policy
2008 2007

Transactions with related parties
 Sales of goods 150.3 140.6 Cost plus a margin of 15% - 30% (2007:  

 Cost plus a margin of 15% - 25%)

(Unit:Million Baht

Separate 
financial statements Pricing Policy
2008 2007

Transactions with subsidiary companies
 Facilities income 14.9 13.7 Approximates cost

 Interest income 44.9 54.1 MLR minus an applicable margin per  
 annum, and MMR (Money Market  
 Rate) per annum

Transactions with subsidiary companies
 Management fee income 116.1 99.9 Approximates cost

 Sales of scraps - 5.9 Market prices

 Purchases of goods 7.0 5.1 Cost plus an average margin of 15%  
 - 20% (2007: Cost plus an average  
 margin of 15% - 25%)

 Facilities expense 2.1 2.2 Approximates cost

Transactions with related parties
 Sales of goods 6.5 8.3 Cost plus a margin of 15% - 30%

 (2007: Cost plus a margin of 
 15% - 25%)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company and its subsidiaries had the following outstanding balances with their 

related parties: 

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Subsidiaries

 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial 
 Company Limited - - 406,155 808,243

 Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited - - 127,469 -

Related companies

 Yongkee (1995) Company Limited 59,770,939 48,013,180 2,367,271 1,916,697

 Automotive Product Import and Export Center
 Company Limited 9,344,924 2,059,850 - -

 Total 69,115,863 50,073,030 2,900,895 2,724,940

•  Notes to consolidated financial statements
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(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007

Other receivable - related parties

Subsidiaries

 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial
 Company Limited - - 5,432,919 2,866,185

 Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited - - 2,480,809 761,409

 International Casting Products Company
 Limited - - 1,933,798 671,112

Related companies

 Yongkee (1995) Company Limited 103,774 - - -

 Somboon Somic Manufacturing Company
 Limited

139,100 - 139,100 -

Total 242,874 - 9,986,626 4,298,706

Short-term loans to subsidiary companies
 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial
 Company Limited - - 30,000,000 -

 International Casting Products Company
 Limited - - 40,000,000 -

Total - - 70,000,000 -

Long-term loans to subsidiary companies

 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial
 Company Limited - - 333,385,600 478,055,600

 Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited - - 303,000,000 383,000,000

Total - - 636,385,600 861,055,600

Trade accounts payable - related parties

Subsidiaries

 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial
 Company Limited - - - 17,292

 Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited - - 352,488 801,044

Total - - 352,488 818,336

Other payable - related parties

Subsidiaries

 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial
 Company Limited - - 1,223,565 10,625

 Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited - - 2,684,495 628,990

Total - - 3,908,060 639,615

Notes to consolidated financial statements  •
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During the year 2008, the balances of loans to subsidiary companies have movements as follows: 

(Unit:Baht)

Separate financial statements

During the year
31 December 

2007 Increase Decrease
31 December 

2008

Short-term loan to subsidiary companies

 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial 
 Company Limited - 60,000,000 (30,000,000) 30,000,000

 Bangkok Spring Industrial 
  Company Limited - 30,000,000 (30,000,000) -

 International Casting Products
 Company Limited - 140,000,000 (100,000,000) 40,000,000

Total - 230,000,000 (160,000,000) 70,000,000

Long-term loans to subsidiary companies

   Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial 
      Company Limited 478,055,600 - (144,670,000) 333,385,600

   Bangkok Spring Industrial 
     Company Limited 383,000,000 - (80,000,000) 303,000,000

Total 861,055,600 - (224,670,000) 636,385,600

Short-term loan to Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial 

Company Limited carries interest at MMR per annum 

and matures on 2 March 2009.

Short-term loan to International Casting Products 

Company Limited carries interest at MMR per annum 

and matures on 29 April 2009.

Long-term loans to Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial 

Company Limited as at 31 December 2008 consist of a 

loan of Baht 222 million that is to be repaid on a quarterly 

basis over 8 years, from June 2004 to December 2011. 

The loan carries interest at a rate of MLR minus an 

applicable margin per annum, payable on a monthly 

basis. The remainder comprises a loan of Baht 111  

million, repayable on a monthly basis over 5 years, from 

January 2007 to September 2011, and carries interest  

at a rate of MLR minus an applicable margin per annum, 

payable on a monthly basis.

Long-term loan to Bangkok Spring Industrial Company 

Limited as at 31 December 2008 consists of a loan of 

Baht 303 million and is to be repaid on a quarterly basis 

over 9 years, from June 2004 to September 2012. The 

loan carries interest at a rate of MLR minus an applicable 

margin per annum.

Directors and management’s remuneration
In 2008 the Company and its subsidiaries paid salaries, 

bonus, meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors 

and management totaling Baht 7.2 million and Baht 0.7 

million (2007: Baht 6.8 million and Baht 0.9 million), 

respectively.

•  Notes to consolidated financial statements
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11. Inventories

(Unit:Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Allowance of diminution in value of inventories

Cost
Reduction of cost to 
net realisable value Stock obsolescence Inventories-net

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Finished goods 81,461 55,598 (2,412) - (1,465) (645) 77,584 54,953

Work in process 107,994 78,347 (2,328) - - - 105,666 78,347

Raw materials 231,297 159,168 - - (853) (844) 230,444 158,324

Spare parts and factory
 supplies 128,347 103,082 - - (8,647) (8,321) 119,700 94,761

Goods in transit 58,156 61,537 - - - - 58,156 61,537

Total 607,255 457,732 (4,740) - (10,965) (9,810) 591,550 447,922

 
(Unit:Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Allowance of diminution in value of inventories

Cost
Reduction of cost to 
net realisable value Stock obsolescence Inventories-net

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Finished goods 21,734 14,024 - - (122) (39) 21,612 13,985

Work in process 19,578 21,534 - - - - 19,578 21,534

Raw materials 25,596 67,105 - - (1) - 25,595 67,105

Spare parts and factory
 supplies 64,115 50,806 - - (2,906) (3,757) 61,209 47,049

Goods in transit 780 2,993 - - - - 780 2,993

Total 131,803 156,462 - - (3,029) (3,796) 128,774 152,666

12. Investments in subsidiaries

(Unit:Thousand Baht)

Company’s name
Paid-up

share capital
Separate

financial statements
2008 2007 2008 2007

Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial
 Company Limited 160,000 160,000 535,995 535,995

Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited 130,000 130,000 519,989 519,989

International Casting Products 
 Company Limited 185,000 185,000 196,034 196,034

Total investments in subsidiaries 1,252,018 1,252,018

Notes to consolidated financial statements  •
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13. Investment in associated companies

13.1 Details of associates

(Unit:Thousand Baht)

Consolidated  
financial statements

Company’s name
Nature of  
business

Country 
of incor-
poration

Paid-up 
share 
capital

Shareholding 
percentage Cost

Carrying  
amounts based  
on equity method

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Percent Percent

Associated company held through Somboon
  Malleable Iron Industrial Company Limited
Tsuchiyoshi Somboon Coated
 Sand Company Limited

Manufacture and sale
 of coated sand Thai 72,000 21.25 21.25 15,300 15,300 28,653 27,440

Associated company held through
  Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited
Yamada Somboon Company
 Limited

Manufacture and sale
 of autoparts Thai 150,000 20.00 20.00 30,807 30,807 82,267 65,026

Total investment in associated companies 46,107 46,107 110,920 92,466

13.2 Share of income/loss and dividend received

During the year, the subsidiaries have recognised their share of net income/loss from investments 

in associate companies in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

 (Unit:Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Company’s name

Share of income (loss)  
from investments in  

associates during the year
Dividend received  
during the year

2008 2007 2008 2007

Tsuchiyoshi Somboon Coated Sand 
 Company Limited 1,213 (144) - -
Yamada Somboon Company Limited 21,504 15,260 4,263 858

Total 22,717 15,116 4,263 858

The investment in Tsuchiyoshi Somboon Coated Sand Company Limited, accounted for under the 

equity method as at 31 December 2008, was calculated based on audited financial statements of 

that company for the year ended 31 March 2008 and unaudited/unreviewed financial statements 

of the company for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2008 prepared by its management.

The investment in Yamada Somboon Company Limited, accounted for under the equity method 

as at 31 December 2008, was calculated based on audited financial statements of that company 

for the six-month period ended 30 June 2008 and unaudited/ unreviewed financial statements of 

the Company for the six-month period ended 31 December 2008 prepared by its management.

•  Notes to consolidated financial statements
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13.3 Summarised financial information of associates

Financial information of the associated companies is summarised bellows:

 (Unit:Million Baht)

Company’s name

Paid-up  
capital as at  
31 December

Total assets  
as at  

31 December

Total  
liabilities 
as at  

31 December

Total  
revenues for 
the year ended  
31 December

Net income 
(loss) for the  
year ended  
31 December

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Tsuchiyoshi Somboon  
 Coated Sand  
 Company Limited 72 72 225 236 90 106 232 196 6 (1)
Yamada Somboon  
 Company Limited 150 150 1,690 1,637 1,279 1,313 2,155 1,794 108 75

14. Long-term investments
(Unit:Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Principal activity

Paid-up
share
capital

Shareholding
percentage

Consolidated 
financial statements

Cost
2008 2007 2008 2007
Percent Percent

Nisshinbo Somboon  
Automotive  
 Company Limited

Manufacture and sale of 
 autoparts and brake  
 systems 732,600 2.90 2.90 21,250 21,250

Somboon Somic 
Manufacturing
   Company Limited

Manufacture and sale of 
 autoparts

300,000 1.80 1.80 5,400 5,400

Total 26,650 26,650

15. Property, plant and equipment 

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit:Baht)

Assets carried  
at the revalued amount Assets carried at cost

Land

Land  
improvement, 
buildings  
and other 
premises Machinery

Tools and  
factory

equipment

Fixtures  
and office
equipment

Motor  
vehicles

Construction/
Installation
in progress Total

At cost/at revaluation
31 December 2007 - as 
 previously reported 782,488,800 652,394,754 2,955,843,345 350,978,272 75,325,791 35,598,874 174,726,595 5,027,356,431
Adjustment due to change in
 accounting policy (Note 4) - - 294,035,448 - - - - 294,035,448
31 December 2007 - as 
  restated 782,488,800 652,394,754 3,249,878,793 350,978,272 75,325,791 35,598,874 174,726,595 5,321,391,879

Surplus from new revaluation 6,638,825 121,177,192 - - - - - 127,816,017

Acquisition 108,261,304 6,447,943 26,507,031 50,945,949 11,036,069 49,694 1,138,962,213 1,342,210,203

Disposal/written-off - (300,000) (3,850,588) (3,001,909) (4,821,179) (3,997,420) (193,951,659) (209,922,755)

Transfer in (transfer out) - 113,788,363 481,532,829 31,858,325 7,297,771 - (641,416,854) (6,939,566)

31 December 2008 897,388,929 893,508,252 3,754,068,065 430,780,637 88,838,452 31,651,148 478,320,295 6,574,555,778

Notes to consolidated financial statements  •
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(Unit:Baht)

Assets carried  
at the revalued amount Assets carried at cost

Land

Land  
improvement, 
buildings  
and other 
premises Machinery

Tools and  
factory

equipment

Fixtures  
and office
equipment

Motor  
vehicles

Construction/
Installation
in progress Total

Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2007 - as 
 previously reported - 164,568,879 1,077,933,554 215,244,206 62,765,511 20,972,436 - 1,541,484,586

Adjustment due to change in
 accounting policy (Note 4) - - 502,182,829 - - - - 502,182,829
31 December 2007 - as 
 restated - 164,568,879 1,580,116,383 215,244,206 62,765,511 20,972,436 - 2,043,667,415

Surplus from new revaluation - 8,700,181 - - - - - 8,700,181

Depreciation for the year - 26,438,873 258,482,591 52,442,310 9,528,120 4,417,401 - 351,309,295

Depreciation of revaluation
 surplus - 3,150,968 - - - - - 3,150,968
Depreciation for disposal /
 written-off - (25,356) (893,671) (2,272,116) (2,085,380) (3,738,369) - (9,014,892)

31 December 2008 - 202,833,545 1,837,705,303 265,414,400 70,208,251 21,651,468 - 2,397,812,967

Net book value

31 December 2007 782,488,800 487,825,875 1,669,762,410 135,734,066 12,560,280 14,626,438 174,726,595 3,277,724,464

31 December 2008 897,388,929 690,674,707 1,916,362,762 165,366,237 18,630,201 9,999,680 478,320,295 4,176,742,811

Depreciation for the year

2007 297,900,130

2008 351,309,295

Separate financial statements

(Unit:Baht)

Assets carried  
at the revalued amount Assets carried at cost

Land

Land  
improvement, 
buildings  
and other 
premises Machinery

Tools and  
factory

equipment

Fixtures  
and office
equipment

Motor  
vehicles

Construction/
Installation
in progress Total

At cost/at revaluation

31 December 2007 - as 
 previously reported 90,141,438 141,768,262 1,130,471,932 70,198,254 26,649,275 19,937,939 50,006,808 1,529,173,908

Adjustment due to change in
 accounting policy (Note 4) - - 34,910,837 - - - - 34,910,837

31 December 2007 - as  
 restated 90,141,438 141,768,262 1,165,382,769 70,198,254 26,649,275 19,937,939 50,006,808 1,564,084,745

Surplus from new revaluation 16,456,687 27,819,723 - - - - - 44,276,410

Acquisition - 391,820 8,825,116 12,452,416 11,923,847 3,900 421,566,878 455,163,977

Disposal / written-off - (300,000) - (254,678) (4,413,330) (1,366,000) - (6,334,008)

Transfer in (transfer out) - 2,785,487 186,767,076 1,418,515 1,523,574 - (197,608,480) (5,113,828)

31 December 2008 106,598,125 172,465,292 1,360,974,960 83,814,507 35,683,366 18,575,839 273,965,206 2,052,077,295

Accumulated depreciation

31 December 2007 - as 
 previously reported - 31,950,416 392,475,535 41,183,184 15,121,978 7,131,361 - 487,862,474

Adjustment due to change in
 accounting policy (Note 4) - - 99,554,700 - - - - 99,554,700

31 December 2007 - as 
 restated - 31,950,416 492,030,235 41,183,184 15,121,978 7,131,361 - 587,417,174
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(Unit:Baht)

Assets carried  
at the revalued amount Assets carried at cost

Land

Land  
improvement, 
buildings  
and other 
premises Machinery

Tools and  
factory

equipment

Fixtures  
and office
equipment

Motor  
vehicles

Construction/
Installation
in progress Total

Depreciation for the year - 6,449,102 115,887,497 12,486,695 4,958,642 3,721,806 - 143,503,742

Depreciation of revaluation
 surplus - 488,935 - - - - - 488,935

Depreciation for disposal/
 written-off -

          
(25,356) - (221,026) (1,687,758) (1,106,951) - (3,041,091)

 Adjustment - 1,631,117 - - - - 1,631,117

31 December 2008 - 38,863,097 609,548,849 53,448,853 18,392,862 9,746,216 - 729,999,877

Net book value

31 December 2007 90,141,438 109,817,846 673,352,534 29,015,070 11,527,297 12,806,578 50,006,808 976,667,571

31 December 2008 106,598,125 133,602,195 751,426,111 30,365,654 17,290,504 8,829,623 273,965,206 1,322,077,418

Depreciation for the year

2007 136,457,500

2008 143,503,742

On 1 October 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries arranged for an independent professional valuer to appraise the 

value of land and buildings. The Company and its subsidiaries recorded the resulting increases in valuation of land and 

buildings, amounting to approximately Baht 93 million,  in “Revaluation surplus on assets” in shareholders’ equity, and 

recorded income of Baht 27 million from reversal of impairment losses of buildings that had been recorded as expenses 

in previous years’ income statements.  The bases for such revaluations were the fair market value for land and the 

replacement cost less accumulated depreciation for buildings.

Had the land, buildings and machinery been carried in the financial statements based on cost, their 

net book value as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 would have been as follows:

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated 
financial statements

Separate
financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007

Land 399,428,419 291,167,115 78,068,188 78,068,138

Land improvement, buildings 
 and other premises 556,308,692 437,029,386 96,304,489 100,274,264

During 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries capitalised interest amounting to Baht 10.3 million 

to the costs of plant construction and machinery installation, of which Baht 5.2 million related to 

borrowing costs of loans obtained specifically for certain projects and Baht 5.1 million to general 

loans. The weighted average rates used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for 

capitalisation were 4.6% to 5.8%.

Notes to consolidated financial statements  •
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As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, certain building and equipment items of the Company and its subsidiaries have 

been fully depreciated but are still in use. The original cost, before deducting accumulated depreciation, of those assets 

amounted to Baht 379.3 million and Baht 318.6 million, respectively (Separate financial statements: amounting to Baht 

35.3 million and Baht 22.4 million, respectively).

The Company and its subsidiaries have mortgaged a majority of their land with structures thereon and machinery as 

collateral for credit facilities granted by commercial banks.

The Company and its subsidiaries calculate depreciation to be charged to the income statements based on the historical 

costs of the assets. However, had the depreciation charge been calculated based on the revalued amounts, net income 

for the years 2008 and 2007, and earnings per share would have been changed to the following:

Consolidated
financial statements

Separate
financial statements

2008 2007
(Restated)

2008 2007
(Restated)

Net income (Million Baht) 632 588 330 281

Basic earnings per share 
 (Baht per share) 2.11 1.96 1.10 0.94

16. Non-operating assets
(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated
financial statements

2008 2007

Land 107,739,100 107,779,100

Less: Allowance for impairment (965,500) -

Total non-operating assets 106,773,600 107,779,100

Land title deeds of its subsidiaries have been placed as collateral for credit facilities of the Company.

17. Intangible assets

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated 
financial statements

Separate 
financial statements

Computer software Computer software

Cost 13,513,267 2,228,302

Acquisition 24,515,310 12,912,125

Less: Accumulated amortisation (12,260,140) (1,836,183)

Net book value as at 31 December 2008 25,768,437 13,304,244

Amortisation expenses included in the
   income statements for the year 3,454,817 1,185,054
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18. Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from banks

(Unit:Baht)

Interest rate
(percent per annum)

Consolidated 
financial statements

2008 2007

Bank overdrafts MOR 10,930,193 4,930,185

Short-term loans from financial institutions MMR 65,000,000 15,000,000

Total 75,930,193 19,930,185

The bank overdrafts are secured by the mortgage of the majority of the Company’s and its two  

subsidiaries’ land with premises and part of their machinery. Short-term loans from financial institutions 

are secured by the mortgage of the majority of a subsidiary’s land with premises and machinery.

19. Short-term loans from banks - trust receipts

Trust receipts carry interest at rates of 2.7% to 6.2%, and are secured by the pledge of inventories 

of two subsidiaries, the mortgage of the majority of the Company’s and its two subsidiaries’ land 

with premises and part of their machinery.

20. Long-term loans

(Unit:Million Baht)

Loan
Interest rate 

(%) Repayment schedule

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements 

2008 2007 2008 2007

1 Fixed rate per annum for 3 years  
and subsequently at MLR per annum. 
On 27 April 2007 the interest was
changed to MLR - fixed rate per annum

Installments as a period of 
3 months from 2004 to 2013

1,226 1,493 1,226 1,493

2 MLR - fixed rate per annum for 
a period of 2 years and subsequently 
at MLR - fixed rate per annum

Monthly installments as from 
2006 to 2010

34 58 34 58

3 MLR - fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2006 to 2011 111 152 111 152

4 MLR - fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2008 to 2013 260 308 - -

5 Fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2007 to 2009 51 93 - -

6 Fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2012 77 - - -

7 MLR - fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2012 5 - - -

8 MLR - fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2008 to 2010 21 - - -
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(Unit:Million Baht)

Loan
Interest rate 

(%) Repayment schedule

Consolidated  
financial statements

Separate  
financial statements 

2008 2007 2008 2007

9 Fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2012 88 - - -

10 MLR - fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2012 62 - - -

11 Fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2013 90 - 90 -

12 MLR - fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2013 91 - 91 -

13 Fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2013 84 - 84 -

14 MLR - fixed rate per annum Monthly installments as from
2009 to 2013 5 - 5 -

Total 2,205 2,104 1,641 1,703

Less: Current portion (510) (421) (361) (332)

Net 1,695 1,683 1,280 1,371

The loan agreements of the Company contain certain covenants which must be complied with while utilising the credit 

facility, pertaining to matters, such as the maintenance of certain financial ratios stipulated by the bank.

The loan agreements of a subsidiary company contain certain covenants such as dividend payment, pertaining to 

matters such as there shall be no effect on the total debt to equity ratio, loan repayment ability, and other conditions 

stipulated by the bank.

The agreements are secured by the mortgage of a majority of the land with premises and machinery of the Company 

and its subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2008, the long-term credit facilities of the Company and its subsidiary which have not yet been 

drawn down amounted to Baht 83 million.

21. Liabilities under finance lease agreements

(Unit:Thousand Baht)

Consolidated
financial statements

Separated
financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007

Liabilities under finance lease agreements 6,708 11,924 5,335 10,600

Less: Deferred interest expenses (739) (1,190) (664) (1,056)

Total 5,969 10,734 4,671 9,544

Less: Portion due within one year (3,364) (3,963) (2,210) (3,296)

Liabilities under finance lease agreements
 - net of current portion 2,605 6,771 2,461 6,248
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The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into the finance lease agreements with leasing 

companies for rental of motor vehicles for use in their operation, whereby they are committed to 

pay rental on a monthly basis. The terms of the agreements are generally between 3 and 5 years. 

Finance lease agreements are non-cancelable.

As at 31 December 2008, Future minimum lease payments required under the finance lease 

agreements were as follows:-

(Unit:Million Baht)

Less than 1 
year 1-5 years Total

Future minimum lease payments 3.7 3.0 6.7

Deferred interest expenses (0.4) (0.4) (0.8)

Present value of future minimum lease payments 3.3 2.6 5.9

22. Revaluation surplus on assets

During the year 2008, movement in the balance of revaluation surplus on assets was as follows: 

Revaluation surplus on assets - the Company

(Unit:Baht)

Land
Building and
other premises Total

Balance - beginning of  the year 2008 12,073,250 9,543,582 21,616,832

Surplus from new revaluation 16,456,688 28,243,059 44,699,747

Amortisation on revaluation surplus - (488,935) (488,935)

Balance - end of the year 2008 28,529,938 37,297,706 65,827,644

Revaluation surplus on assets - the subsidiaries

(Unit:Baht)

Land
Building and
other premises Total

Balance - beginning of  the year 2008 479,248,435 41,252,907 520,501,342

Surplus (deficit) from new revaluation (9,817,863) 58,477,435 48,659,572

Amortisation on revaluation surplus - (2,662,033) (2,662,033)

Balance - end of the year 2008 469,430,572 97,068,309 566,498,881

The revaluation surplus on assets can neither be offset against retained deficit nor used for dividend payment.
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23. Dividends

Dividends Approved by Total dividends
Dividends  
per share

(Unit:Million Baht) (Unit:Baht)

Final dividends for 2006 Annual General Meeting 
 of the shareholders on 
 24 April 2007 90 0.30

Interim dividends for 2007 Board of Directors’ meeting 
 on 22 August 2007 90 0.30

Total payment in 2007 180 0.60

Final dividends for 2007 Annual General Meeting
 of the shareholders on
 24 April 2008 120 0.40

Interim dividends for 2008 Board of Directors’ meeting 
 on 14 August 2008 90 0.30

Total payment in 2008 210 0.70

24. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required 

to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated 

deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The 

statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

25. Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax for the year has been calculated at rates of 25 percent on net income of the Company from 

non-promoted activities and 30 percent on net income of its subsidiary companies from non-promoted activities, after 

adding back certain provisions and expenses which are disallowed for tax computation purposes and deducting tax loss 

brought forward from previous years (if any). 

26. Promotional privileges

The Company and its two subsidiaries have been granted promotional privileges under the Investment Promotion Act 

B.E. 2520 by the Board of Investment under certain significant conditions. Significant privileges are as follow:

The Company The Subsidiaries

Certificate No. 1449(2)/
2548

1221(2)/
2549

1395(2)/
2550

7007(2)/
2550

1813(2)/
2550

1474(2)/
2546

1111(2)/
Or./2551

Promoted activities Rear Axle Shaft Metal Machined Parts Hardening Casting 
Parts

Hardening

Promotional privileges for

1. Exemption from 
corporate income tax 
on net income from the 
promoted operations for a 
period of 8 years, to the 
extent that the amount 
of tax exempted does 
not exceed investment 
capital exclusive of land 
and working capital.

Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted
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The Company The Subsidiaries

Certificate No. 1449(2)/
2548

1221(2)/
2549

1395(2)/
2550

7007(2)/
2550

1813(2)/
2550

1474(2)/
2546

1111(2)/
Or./2551

Promoted activities Rear Axle Shaft Metal Machined Parts Hardening Casting 
Parts

Hardening

2. A fifty percent reduction 
of the normal rate of 
corporate income tax on 
the net income derived 
from the promoted activity 
for a period of five years 
after the expiration of the 
tax exemption period.

Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted

3. Permission to double  
deduct transportation, 
electricity and water 
expenses for a period of 
ten years, commencing 
as from the date of first 
earning operating income.

Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted

4. Permission to add  
25 percent of the cost 
of installation and 
construction in the  
normal depreciation 
calculation.

Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted Granted

5. Exemption from import 
duty on imported and 
essential raw materials 
used in manufacturing 
for export sales for a 
period of five years com-
mencing as from the 
first importation date.

Granted Granted Granted - - - -

6. Exemption from import 
duty on imported articles 
for export sales for a 
period of five years  
commencing as from  
the first importation date.

Granted Granted Granted - - - -
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The total revenues of the Company for the years are divided between promoted and non-promoted 

revenues as follows: 

(Unit:Baht)

Separate financial statements

2008 2007

Promoted
activities

Non-
promoted
activities Total

Promoted
activities

Non-
promoted
activities Total

Revenues
 Sales

 -  Domestic 965,063,368 984,914,854 1,949,978,222 894,193,862 883,115,744 1,777,309,606

 -  Export - 57,301,832 57,301,832 - 26,176,567 26,176,567

 Other income 9,416,628 203,297,193 212,713,821 12,696,679 187,233,723 199,930,402

Total revenues 974,479,996 1,245,513,879 2,219,993,875 906,890,541 1,096,526,034 2,003,416,575

27.  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

28. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follow:

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated 
financial statements

Separate 
financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007

Salary and wages and other employee 
 benefits 735,641 655,123 287,807 262,827

Depreciation and amortisation 357,453 306,897 144,789 136,687

Exchange loss 23,558 - 688 -

Raw materials and consumables used 2,667,287 1,960,393 841,903 789,688

Changes in finished goods and work
 in progress 55,510 30,555 (5,754) 15,733

29. Provident fund

The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have registered separate provident fund schemes under the Provident 

Fund Act B.E. 2530. The funds are contributed to by the Company, its subsidiaries and their employees at rates of 3 

percent of the employees’ monthly salaries. The fund is managed by American International Assurance Co., Ltd. During 

the year 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries contributed approximately Baht 9.0 million (Separate financial statement: 

Baht 3.8 million), as included in employee costs, to the provident fund.
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30. Commitments 

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company and 
its subsidiaries have the following commitments: 

30.1 Capital commitments of Baht 191.0 million and JPY 
157.7 million (2007: Baht 67.3 million and JPY 4.1 
million) in respect of land acquisition, purchase of  
machinery and computer software.

30.2 The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into  
several lease agreements in respect of the lease 
of motor vehicles and equipment. The terms of the 
agreements are generally between 1 and 5 years.  
Operating lease agreements are non-cancellable.

The Company and subsidiaries had the following  
outstanding commitments in respect of non-cancellable 
lease and service agreements were as follows.

Million Baht
Payable within:

1 year 47.75

2 to 5 years 34.86

Thereafter 0.23

30.3 The Company has entered into a technical assistance 
agreement with a foreign company covering the  
machining process, whereby the Company is to pay fees 
at a rate of 1.5 percent of the balance of sales minus 
material cost of products from the machining process. 
The agreement is for 5 years, expiring in 2010, and can 
be extended for a further 5 years.

30.4 The Company has entered into a technical assistance 
agreement with another foreign company covering the 
forging process whereby the Company is to pay fees 
at a rate of 3 percent of the balance of sales minus 
material costs of products from the forging process. 
The agreement is for 5 years, expiring in 2009 and is 
renewable for a further 5 years.

30.5 Bangkok Spring Industrial Company Limited has 
entered into a technical assistance agreement with a 
foreign company regarding the manufacture of its main  
products, whereby that company is to pay a monthly 
fee of USD 15,000. The agreement is for 6 years, and 
expires during the current year.

30.6 Somboon Malleable Iron Industrial Company Limited has entered into a technical assistance agreement 

with a foreign company regarding the process of machining, whereby that company is to pay a fee at 

1.5 percent of the balance of sales minus material costs of products from the machining process. The 

agreement is for 5 years, expiring in the year 2009, and is renewable for a further 5 years.

30.7 International Casting Products Company Limited has entered into a technical assistance agreement 

with a foreign company regarding the process of casting, whereby that company is to pay a monthly 

fee of JPY 1 million. The agreement is for 5 years, expiring in the year 2010, and is renewable for 

a further 5 years.

31. Guarantee

As at 31 December 2008, there were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 12.4 million and Baht 

29.4 million issued by a bank on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries, respectively (2007: 

Baht 10.8 million and Baht 24.3 million, respectively), in respect of certain performance bonds 

required in the normal course of the Company’s and the subsidiaries’ businesses.

32. Financial information by segment

The Company and its subsidiaries operate in the single industry segment of the manufacture 

and sale of auto parts in the single geographic area of Thailand. As a result, all of the revenues, 

operating profits and assets as reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned 

industry segment and geographic area. 
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33. Financial instruments

Financial risk management
Financial instruments of the Company and its subsidiaries, as defined under Thai Accounting 

Standard No. 48 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash 

and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, loans, investments, and short-term and long-term 

loans. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed 

is described below.

Interest rate risk
The Company and its subsidiary companies are exposed to interest rate risk primarily in relation 

to their cash at banks, bank overdrafts and long-term borrowings subject to interest.  However, 

because most of the financial assets and liabilities carry floating interest rates which will fluctuate in 

line with the market interest rates or carry fixed interest rates which approximate the current market 

interest rate, interest rate risk of the Company and its subsidiary companies is considered to be low.

As at 31 December 2008, the significant financial assets and liabilities classified by types of interest 

rate and, for the financial assets and liabilities carrying fixed interest rate, by the contractual repricing 

or maturity date (whichever is earlier) are as follows: -

(Unit:Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Fixed interest rates

Interest
rate

Within
1 year 1-5 years

Floating
interest rate

Non-
interest
bearing Total

(% p.a.)

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0.5% - 3.0% - - 123.6 1.5 125.1

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term

  loans from banks MOR, MMR - - 75.9 - 75.9

Trust receipts 2.7% - 6.2% 309.7 - - - 309.7

Finance lease contracts payable 2.5% - 3.9% 3.4 2.6 - - 6.0

Long-term loans MLR - fixed rate      

per annum - - 2,205.4 - 2,205.4

313.1 2.6 2,281.3 - 2,597.0
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(Unit:Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

Fixed interest rates

Interest
rate

Within
1 year 1-5 years

Floating
interest rate

Non-
interest
bearing Total

(% p.a.)

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0.5% - 3.0% - - 34.2 1.4 35.6

Short-term loans to subsidiary 
 companies

Market rate

MLR - fixed rate      

per annum

- - 70.0 - 70.0
Long-term loans to subsidiary 
 companies

- - 636.4 - 636.4

- - 740.6 1.4 742.0

Financial liabilities

Finance lease payable 2.5% - 3.5% 2.2 2.5 - - 4.7

Long-term loans MLR - fixed rate      

per annum - - 1,640.9 - 1,640.9

2.2 2.5 1,640.9 - 1,645.6

Foreign currency risk
The Company and its subsidiary companies have a significant foreign currency risk in respect 

of the purchase and sales of goods and machinery. However, the Company and its subsidiary 

companies have entered into forward contracts with maturities of less than one year to mitigate 

the foreign currency risk.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 

2008 are summarised below. 

Foreign currency
Financial
assets

Financial 
liabilities

Average exchange rate
as at 31 December 2008

(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US dollar 0.2 4.9 34.9438

Japanese yen 88.7 290.7 0.3864

Foreign exchange contracts outstanding at 31 December 2008 are summarised below. 

Foreign currency Bought amount Contractual exchange rate
(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US dollar 4.6 34.5950 - 35.4700

Japanese yen 87.0 0.3598
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Credit Risk
The Company and its subsidiary companies are ex-

posed to credit risk primarily with respect to their trade 

accounts receivable, lendings and other receivable. The 

management manages the risk by adopting appropriate 

credit control policies and procedures. In addition, most 

of the customers have good financial positions and no 

problems with payment. As a result, the Company and 

its subsidiary companies do not expect to incur material 

financial losses.

Fair value
Since the majority of financial assets and financial li-

abilities of the Company and its subsidiaries are short-

term in nature, interest rates of loans and borrowings 

are approximate to the market rate, the fair value of 

financial assets and financial liabilities are presented 

as the amount stated in the balance sheet. 

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be 

exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, 

willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair 

value is determined by reference to the market price 

of the financial instrument or by using an appropriate 

valuation technique, depending on the nature of the 

instrument.

Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital 

management is to ensure that it has an appropriate 

financial structure and preserves the ability to continue 

its business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 

2008, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 1.5 (2007: 

1.6) and the Company’s was 1.1 (2007: 1.2).

34. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 25 

February 2009.
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